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Qur Business

Valukoula Gold Mines Ple {("VGM" or "Group”) explores, discovers, and develops gold mines is prmanly focused on its
operations on the Paaific Island of Fip

VGM s the owner of the longest producing gold mine in Fii Operating for over 75 years, the mine has produced in excess
of seven million ounces of gold VGM acquired the mine in 2008 and aims 1o achieve sustaned profitable production of
100,000 ounces of gold per annum We are currently in our next phase of expansion at the mine, increasing our
produclion from the current base of approximately 50,000 ounces per annum to 100,000 ounces of gold per annum The
mine currently has 4 2 millton ounces of Mineral Resources and 790,000 ounces of Mineral Reserves

The Vatukoula Gold Mine 1s located in the northern part of the main istand in Fii, approximately ten kilometres inland from
the coast and within the Tavua Basin. The mine 1s located at the foo! of the hills that make up the Tavua volcanic crater

The mine operates within three Special Mining Leases which covers a total area of 1,265 hectares In addition VGM can
explore on areas outside the current mining leases via Special Prospecling Licenses which covers over 19,000 hectares of
the surrounding Tavua volcano

The Vatukoula Gold Mine 1s currently both an open pit and underground operation, however in the madium-term it wall
become predominanlly an underground mine Underground production 15 sourced from four mining areas, Smith Shaft,
Philp Shaft, R1 Cayzer Shaft and Emperor Decline The Smith and Philip Shafts, and the Emperor Decline serve as the
main accesses to the underground workings for personne! and materials, and are used for ore and waste haulage

Once the ore Is hauled to the surface It 15 crushed, enniched and refined at our on-site trealment plant, to produce Gold
Dore Gold Dore produced at the mine 1s typically 80% gold, 19% silver and 1% base metals such as copper and (ron The
Gold Dore 1s sold to the Perth Mint in Australia

VGM has onsite workshops, assay labs and produces its own power via diesel generators

Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc 1s a UK public company with ifs headquarters in London We are hsted on the AlM market of
the London Stock Exchange under the symbaol VGM The Group reports in Pounds Sterling (£) in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the European Unian

Forward-ooking Statemant

This annual report containg forward-looking wiformation which may include butis nol lmited o stalements with respect to the future financial 2nd operalng performance of VGM, its
subsifanes invasiment assels and sffbated companias its m ning projects the future pnce of gold the estimation of mineral resources 1ha realisation of minaral rosourca 8stmates
costs of production, capital end explorat on expenditutes costs and bming of (he development of new depasits, costs and tanng of the development of new ore zones cos!s and timing
of futurs exploralon requiements for eddivona) capial governmentat regulation of mining operations and exploration operatioas, Iming and receipt of approvals Licenses end
conversions under The Republic of Fijl and other applicable mieral legislabion snvironmental nsks Lile disputas or dewms Lmitetons of Insurance coverage and the tnung and
possibla cutcoma ol pending libgaticn and regulalery matlers

Often but nol siways forward-loclung slalemants can ba idenlfied by the use of words such as ‘plans | ‘expects, Is expecled budgsl scheduled esumalas, forecasts ntends
prlicipatos or bekoves o vanabions (including negatve vanatons) of such words and prwasas or state thal cerlain ackons events of results may', could’, ‘would, might of ‘wl be
taken, ocour of be achieved  Forward-ioclung stotements involve known end unknown nisks uncertanlies and other factors that may cause the aciuah resulls, performence or
achievements of VGM sndlor it subsidares kwestment assets and/or iis effilia‘ed companies to be malenally Siferent from any future rasults, performence or achievements
exprassed of implied by the forwerd Jocking stalements

Such factars include emong others genersl business economic compeliive politcal and soGisl uncertainbes the actual resulls of curtent explorabion actwlies condusions of
sconoemic avalualons end studies Puciuatons in the velue of UK Pourds Stering relative to the United Stales Do'lar Fipan Dollar Australian Dollar and alher foreign currancles
changes In project parametars as plans contnue 10 be refined future pnces of Gold possib'e varialions of ore grade of recovery ratas failure of plant, equipmert or procasses to
operate 23 ankepaled accdents labour dispules and other ns<s of the mining industry pottical instabily odverse her condilions insuirection or war delays i obla ning
governmental approvals of financing or in the comp'etion of developmant or ConNsCHON actvites

Although VGM has at'empled lo 1enlfy importani factors that could cause sctual eclions events of resulls to dif'ar matenally from (hose descrbed in forward-ooking stalements thare
may well be othar factors that couse acions evenls or resulls 1o differ from those current’y enucipated tad of intendad

Forwarglookng stalaments conlained heren are made as of the da*e of Lhus annual repert end VGM disciaims any obhigation to update any forward-tookung stalements whether as a
fosult of new nformation fulwa events of rasults or otherwse  There can be no assurance that forwarddooking stalements will prove (o be accwrale @3 actual resulls and future
ovents covid difer materally from thosa anlepated in such slatements  Accordingly, readers should not place undue reance on forwardHocking slalements due to he inherent
uncarizinty theremn Nothing [n this annual repont should be construed as ¢ profit forocast
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Our Strategy

We have a clear strategy to deliver to our shareholders the full potental of the Vatukoula Gold Mine We aim fo achieve

this by focusing on four key strategic pnonties

Stratagic Priority

Operational Drivers

Achievemnents In 2011

Expand

our current production from the
Vatukoula Gold Mine to a
targeted sustalned rate of
100,000 ounces of gold per
annum

Develop erough underground access, or
development, alfowing access to the
requred miming areas and therefore
tennages and grade

427,685 tonnes of waste and ore
mined, a 40% Increase on last
yoar's figure

24453 metres of operating and
capital development carried out, a
180% Increase over last year

336,085 lonnes of underground ore
delivered to the mill, a 38% increase
compared to lhe previous year

Sustain

the targeted production rate
beyond current Mineral
Reaserves

Further define the large Mmeral
Resource Inventory and converting
these to Proven and Probable Mineral
Reserves to both replace the ounces
muned and increase the current Mineral
Reserve base

A resource and reserve dniling
programme has been developed
during the period under review, this
will be our mam exploration focus
duning the coming year

Optimise

our working practices and
working relationships to target
lower unlt costs on a per tonne
basis

Target key operational drivers and coslts
whuch have high Internat rates of return
and low capital costs

The Flp Sugar Corporatien {*FSC"}
completed its feasibllity sludy of the
construction of a blo fuel co-
generation plant Our involvement in
this project via an  ofi-take
agreement on the power producad
from the plant will approximately
halve our power costs

Dunng the Yyear we have
constructed a small scale bactenal
lsach recovery plant In bench tests
this has yelded 95% recovery rates
of gold from our ore This Is
considerably  higher than the
racovery rate dunng the year of
81%

We have begun the tendenng
process of several of our key
consumables This will help us
achieve lower unil cosls

Grow

through greenfield oppotunities
in the area surrounding the
Vatukoula Gold Mine

Evaluate, define and explore the Special
Prospecting Licenses within the Tavua
Basin

More than 21,000 metres drilled
which dentified both extensians of
current ore bodies and potential
new ore bodies

Mineral Resource currently being
ovaluated owver two  surface
deposits

We operate in a responsible manner in relation lo our people, the environment and the communities that we inhabit as a
business, which we view as being important to achieving our strategic priorifies
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Operational and Financial Highlights 2010/2011

Financial

Turnover of £47 9 million (2010 £40 3 million) - varance driven by higher gold prces

EBITDA of £2 2 million (2010 £8 9 milion} - lower as a resull of development pregramme delivering lower grade ore
Net loss of £2 3 million (2010 Profit £4 5 millien)

Contmued capital investment of £11 mihon (2010 £10 million)

Completion of £6 milllon equity placing through the 1ssue of 4 8 milion shares in June 2014

Cash position of £6 9 million

Completion of share consolidation in November 2010 fo realign the Company's share siructure in a manner
favourable to a potentizl North Amenican listing

Operational

Gold sold was 53,461 cunces for the year ended Augusi 2011

Underground ore delivered increased by 40% compared to the previous year

The underground development for the year was 24,453 metres up from 8,720 metres achieved in the previous year
These significant increases are the result of our on-going development programme

The Appointment of Dawid Whillle as General Manager i July paved the way for a varety of operational
improvements, Including

o Mwumising waste from development with split firng technique to blast the ore and waste separately,

o The introduction of fruck chutes to reduce the need for underground loaders, and

o The miroduction of water cannons in the underground stopes to recover more of lhe fines

Feasibilty study completed on the Rarawai power project by the Fiji Sugar Corporation, with VGM in negotiations to
secure off-take agreement, or joint venture the project

Exploration

Mineral Resource base increased by 6% to 4 2 million ounces, of which 790,000 cunces are classifled as Minera!
Resarves

Encouraging results are reported from VGM's initial surface exploration programme, which has been designed to
provide a preiminary delinealion of oxidefiransitional malenal within the current mining leases 21 holes returned
gold grades in excess of 3 grams of gold per tonne Intersections Include 5 14 grams of gold per tonne over 17 55
metres, 12 09 grams of gotd per tonne over 5 metres and 3 45 grams of gold per tonne over 19 metres

Mine envelope exploration targets the Prince and Matanagata North East (MGNE) flat-makes Significant
intersections included 23 1 grams of gold per tonne over 1 30 matres (Pnince) and 8 6 grams of gold per forne over
0 77 metres (MGNE)
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Chalrman's Statement
Dear Shareholders,

The German-American economist Hans Sennholz once said “For more than two thousand years gold's natural qualities
made # man's umversal medium of axchange In contrast to political money, gotd 1s henest money that survived the ages
and will live on long after the political fiats of today have gone the way of all paper *

Fiat money 1s defined as money, either paper or coin, made legal tender and assigned a value by govarnment decree
This places a huge responsibility on governments, who are inclined to take on obligations that they are unabte to fulfil and
having done so have to reduce the value of those same obligations by reducing the value of the currency When
questoned in the USA on the plans that the Federal Reserve Bank had to put the economy back on its feet, Mr Bernanke
(Chairman of the Federal Reserve) said that he had a wonderful invention for that very problem, the pnnting press (his
words not mine)

Governmants can create "fial money" much faster than mining companies can mine gold Even in exceptional years the
world gold production only nses i single figure percentages, whereas governments can increase available credit by
hundreds of percenlages points The "gold bubble” frequently quoted is In reality the result of a paper money bubble, with
gold trying to maintain its value as aganst the shifing values of the various reserve currencies The paper currencies have
fulfiled one of the pnmary functions of money In providing a medium of exchange but have singularly failed to provide the
equally important function of being a store of value Gold has re-enlered the money world by providing a store of value
QOver the next few years the older countries of Europe are likely to be forced to reduce their central bank gold holdings to
shore up their currencies with the gold flowing to the coffers of the emerging markets

Although the gold pnee has been buoyant over the last year, smaller capitalised gold mining companies haven't reflected
this and 1 am frequently being asked why | think the reason lies in the creation of the Gold ETF Funds that have siphoned
off a lot of Investment money into direct holdings of gold, since the security and ease of holding gold has improved The
speed that sizeable amounls of money can enter and leave the market s also helpful to performance funds and bypasses
the difficuities faced i buying equily shareholdings in smaller mining companies with their attendant nisks However this
will change when the cash flows in the industry allow the payment of dividends to shareholders

Following a year of consolidalion, we set out our accelerated development programme with a view to be producing
100,000 ounces of gold per year That objective continues to be In our sights but as yet has not baen achieved VGM
shipped a total of 53,461 ounces of gold In the year under review

Following the appomniment in July 2011 of our new General Manager, David Whitlle, we commenced a review of our
mining operations n cansultation with the sentor mine operations team

The review was designed to see how we could re-position our mining actwilies m order to both meet the targets that had
been set and oplimize our operations in the short and long term

Toward the end of the year, we iroduced a number of Intiatives to reduce dilution and increase the grade mined These
included spht-finng of development drives, improved staff motivation, improved mining practices and the reintroduction of
sweeping teams to remove the remamning materlal \n mined stopes These methods will help reduce our cash cost per
ounce and ensura we mine less waste and produce more gold beanng ore

The purchase of two development machines, ene of which was on site and operating prior to year-end, enhanced our
mechanised miming approach This will help to overcome some of the shorfalls we encountered in our below ground
infrastructure  This, coupled with the condensing of the mine development plan at the Philip Shaft, will combine to help
creale better circumstances for our operafion to deliver lugher grades and production output over the medwum term

Whilst we have taken sleps to improve our mining operation, we have also mvested In an exploration programme
designed to help find new resources and help extend our hife of mine operations n FI
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Moving forward, | am confident that the actions cur Mine Management and Operational Teams took fhis year, supported
by the Board, will help to position your company lo meet its yearly targel of 100,000 ounces of production With a
promising honzon of new ore body discoveries, such as that announced in October 2011, we look forward o many more
years of profitabla production from the Valukoula Gold Mine

As we go Into 2012, | remain optimistic aboul the prospects of our industry and in particular our company We need to
apply the hard lessons learned 10 overcome the challenges we will face dunng the coming year and deliver aganst the
potential of our asset base

Once again, | take this opportunily to thank all our hard working and dedicated staff, operations and management and
acknowledge the support provided to our company by our vanous stakeholders and supphers

Glbf

Colin Orr-Ewing
Executive Charrman
12 December 2011
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

During the last twelve months we have made positive operational sindes wilh increased underground development rales
and targe increases in underground ore mined However, despile these achievements, the mining constraints we faced at
the Vatukoula Gold Mine prevented us from achieving our production target As such, resolving these 1ssues became a
top prionty for our Management team during this year, ensuring the mine enters 2012 in a position to grow and deliver to
our long term targets

The mmprovements, made mostly during the second half of the year, included the recruitment of additional personne to our
techrical team, the infroduchon of tmproved mining disciplings, and a number of Senior Management changes We are
confident that these actions will build a solid foundation from which to expand our production

Oparating and Financial Performance

VGM sold 53,461 ounces of gold in the year at an average cost of US$1,349 per ounce The main driver to the higher
cash cost per ounce was the increased development metres achiaved duning the year wivch delivered lower grades to the
mil  Operating costs on a per tonne basis have increased to US$145 on an overall basis, however, lhis increase 15
pnmanly because of lhe Increased amount of underground ore mined and milled as a percentage of the total ore mined
The positive movement of the gold price mitigated some of the higher cost base with our operaling cash oulflow for the
year being £2 3 milion with a year-end cash position of £6 @ million During the year our Mineral Resource base increased
by 6% to 4 2 million ounces, of which 790,000 ounces are classified as Mineral Reserves

Davelopment of the Vatukoula Gold Mine

The Mine Management team and Senior Team Leaders sel about an aggressive underground mining programme that
resulted in the mining this year of 427,685 tonnes of underground ore and wasle, a 40% increase over the previous year
As I1s expacted, the company mined more waste and less gold beanng ore body, pnncipally because the qualtty of the
underground infrastructure necessary for us to recover higher grades within the ore body itself was not sufficiently or
previously put in place

Any underground niine requires a huge Input of infrastructure buiiding long before production commences We were aware
that nsufficient development was available to provide for flexible and sustainable long-term operattons Therefore a
development calch-up programme was agreed at all fevels, and was targeted to be complete within six menths  This
objeclive was not realised as development rales thal were envisioned were not practically achievable

Development, although not conducted at the rate required, was substaniial in the year under review A total of over 24,000
metres was achieved, a threefold increase over the previcus year Development at the mine has histoncally been
undertaken on the ore body, called stnke drives This has been considered the best practice, for a number of reasons
Firstly the ore body at the mine 1s generally shallow dipping resulling i the alternative, a footwall drive, being developed
too far away from the ore body, secondly, the development along the ore body gives a good cross sechonal ore grade
evaluahon, which gives the mine a better evaluation of the ore body before miring, and finally because less waste matena)
1s mined dunng this type of mining

In future, using strike development, the mine will be targeting a ratio of 30% development tonnage to 70% from mining
operations The rate al the beginning of the year was the reverse

Because of the combination of a high rate of development lo create the infrastructure required, which resulted in dituted
grade due o development, and the dilulion from development of the up-dip stopes, the overall grade of the year under
review was below our forecast

We have instgated a number of measures to assist mining, and in particular grade conirol Wae have returned our stope
mining to traditional longwall stopes, with the addition that we are designing new stopes to preduce over a much longer
time honzon This involves longer setting up — but we believe It will provide smoother production when commisioned
Added to this 15 the use of truck chutes for the loading of ore, which will assist in our heavy equipment availability
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Mine Management has introduced a number of adthhonal imtiatives 1o reduce diluhion, including stncter control of mirning
areas and spht blasting in development dnves We have also inilrated in one section on a tnal basis, the use of footwall
dnve development as opposed {o stnke development We look forward to assessing the results of this triaf program

Qverall, | am satisfied with the progiess foward the long-term fulure of the mines' underground operations W is
management's objective to place the underground mine into a continuous sustainable production fevel There will be
additlonal capital requirements for the underground mine going forward We have already lughlighted the 18 level decline
to access new areas in the Philip Shaft In the medium to long term we will also be required to upgrade and refurinsh the
venblation system at the mine, and continue to increase our knowladge of the Minerat Resqurces at lhe Vatukoula Gold
Mmne

Sustainable Power

Dunng the perod, the proposed power project to be devsloped by the Fii Sugar Corporation (*FSC®) at the nearby
Rarawal Sugar Mill was the subject of a bankable feasibility study The project has been designed to produce sufficient
powaer for both the Rarawat Mill and VGM  The capital cost is eshmated to be in the region of US$130 to US$160 million
depending on an owner build or construction contractor optton  Construction 1s scheduled to begin in calendar 2013
subject to finance The FSC 1s currenily in negotiations to secure finance, with VGM looking to enter inlo a long term off
lake agreement and if possible acquire an interest in the project

Woe beheve thal a long-term power supply from a source that 1s not beholden to the international hydrocarbon price would
provide a large benefit to the long-term cperations at the Vatukoula Gold Mine, through lowered operating costs

Exploration

tn January 2011, VGM began the first exploration programme for over a decade The mam targets for this programme
were extensions to exisling as well as new surface oxide mineralizalion, underground high-grade ore bodies adjacent to
axisting resources, and previously dnilled exploration targets on VGM's Special Prospecting Licenses

Encouraging progress has been made on all of these largets We completed a 60-hole sutface cxvde dnill campaigh which
covered approximately 520,000 m? The results from this campaign are currently being reviewed and we aim to be able to
deliver a resource statement dunng the coming year The dnlling on the underground targets also yielded posilive results
indicating further extenslons of both the Matanagata and Prince flatmakes As part of our exploration programme in the
coming year hoth of these ore bodies are being largetad

Driing on the Special Prospecting Licenses began in latter half of the year and post the year end we announced the
prehimmnary results related to the discovery of a series of new ore bodies at the Vatukoula Gold Mine  Further drilling of
these targets will be camed out duning the year to belter define the geometry of these structures and their full economic
potential

Strengthening the Management Team

During the last quarter of the year, we hegan the process of strengthening our management team at the Vatukoula Gold
Mine

In July, Mr Dawnd Whittle was appointed as General Manager of the Vatukoula Gold Mine Mr Whillle has vast
expenence In underground mining and has managed mining operations in the Pacific fslands, His underground
expenance will assist in placing the Vatukoula Gold Mine in the long-term sustainable position that we are looking to
achieve Toward the end of the year, we also made some key appaintments in the Geological, Mine Planning,
Mamtenance, and Supply Depariments  Wilh these appointments, we beheve that we now have in place & management
team with the required experience, professional skill set and hunger to develop the mine and deliver an is full potential
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North American Listing

We still envisage that we will apply for an additonal fisting on a North Armencan market as we believe that this will provide
exposure to a market with a broad number of comparable underground gold mining companies Full documentation will
be prowided to the relevant exchange withun the forthcoming year subject to the mine achieving the improvements in
sustainable mining that we are expecting

Post Balance Sheet Events

As a result of the aclions taken in the last quartar of the financial year, gold production has improved dramatically Higher
grades delivered to the mill and lower tonnages have resulted in the mine producing to target and at a lower cost than
forecast

Outloock

The last year has been one of significant challenges, which | believe we have deall with effectively and decisively The
measures we have taken dunng the year and in particular in the last quarier we believe will result in increased production
levels and tower costs in the coming year More importantly, it will be a year of laying the sohd foundation required to
achieve aur strategic objectives of expansion, sustainable produclion, operational optimisation, and growth

The key business objectives and their relation to our strategic pnonties for 2012 are

« Expand

Achieve a produchan of 65,000 ounces
Achieve a normal and capifal development metres of 26,000 metres
« Sustain
Begin reserve and resource dnilling programme with the objective of increasing our Mineral Reserve base
s  Optimise
Continue bio-oxidation feach testing
Further negotiations with FSC with the aim a signing a memoranduim of understanding
Complete tendenng process on key consumables at the mina
+ Grow
Complete Mineral Resource statements on surface deposits
Carry out further dniling on key target identified dunng the current year

In conclusion, | would ke to thank all of the operating staff at the Vatukoula Gold Mine for their commitment enthusiasm
and enormous effort in what has been a challenging year in the development of the business | would also like to thank
the Board, for ther support, advice, and commitment throughout the year

AN

Dawvid Karl Paxton
Chief Executive Officer
12 December 2011
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Market Review

Information contained 1n the following gold sector market oullook 1s taken from the iatest statistics published by the Werld
Gold Council (www gotd org), the industry bady thal reports and analysis trends associated with the supply and demand of
gold Such information 1s accurate at the ime of the production of this report

Demand

2010 was a strong year for the gold sector Demand increased to 3,812 2 tonnes (with a total value of US$150 bihon), a
9% ncrease over 2009 figures This performance is primanly atinbutable to growth in demand from the jewellery sector,
the revival of the Indian markel and strong moementum 1IN Chinese gold demand Equally, it should be noted that Central
Banks have become net purchasers of gold for the first time in 21 years

Gold continues {o be regarded as a trustworthy investment product, parhicularly in imes of great economic disturbance
The introduction of gold backed exchange traded funds (ETFs) in 2003 has driven substantiai demand levels ETFs
accounted for 338 tonnes of physical gold in 2010, down 45% from the 617 1 tonnas of demand recorded 1n 2009 as a
result of profit taking

Global gold demand i the second quarter of 2011 was 919 8 tonnes (total value US$44 5 billion), the second highest
quarterly value on record Year-on-year growth was broad-based across sectors and geographies Agan, indha and China
were the major contributors to growth in both jewellery and investment demand

Supply

4,108 tonnes of gold came inte the market in 2010, representing a 2% increase on 2009's figure The underlying
companents of supply were mixed The combined effect of a reduction in the supply of recycled gold (-19 tonnes
compared to 2009) and a shift in the official sector to modest net purchases (-117 tonnes) were cancelled oul by a 136
tonne year-on-yaar dechine in praducer de-hedging Gwen that the net effect of these changes on supply was neghgible,
the 74 tonne year-on-year increase in 2010 was solely the result of growth 1n mine production

At 1,058 7 tonnes, the supply of gold in the second quarter of 2011 was 4% below the comparatwe perniod in 2010 Mine
production was the only element of the supply portfolio to register growth (7% year-on-year} The rematning elements of
supply experienced a net volume decrease compared to Q2 2010

Second quarter mine production of 708 8 tonnes was 48 4 tonnes above the levels of Q2 2010 Simular to the previous
quarter, the distribution of gains in mine production was geographically widespread, with posilive contributions from all
regtons

Increases were pariicularly strong in Afnca as Randgold Resources' Tongon mine in Cote d'lvoire, which poured its first
gold in November, benefited from an increase in average ore grade Production at Nevsun's recently established Bisha
mine In Erlirea also contnbuted o growth after coming on slream in February QOperalions in Ghana and Burkina Faso also
generaled growth m mine production A number of new starts in Canada bolstered production there, while in North
Amenca Barnck's Corlez mine bensfitted from increased mill throughput Higher throughput at Newmont's Boddington
mine and significant production Improvement at Catalpa Resources’ Edna May operation both contnibuted to growth in
Austrahan gold production

Mine Supply versus Gold Price

Further increases in mine production were seen in Russia and Kazakhstan, as well as Turkey, Papua New Guinea,
Mexico and Chile  Net producer hedging swung back to & negative number tn the second quarter Net de-hedging of 10
tonnes reversed just over half of the modest 18 8 tonnes of net hedging that took place dunng the second quarter of 2010
The impact on supply from hedging activity 1s likely to remain insignificant over the coming quarters, the outslanding global
hedge book remains small on a historical basis and new, so far modest, hedging actity remains largely project-bassd
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Cenlral banks remained net buvers of gold in the second quarter of the year Although well below ths first quarter's
elevaled lavels, central bank purchases of gold of 69 4 tonnes were the second highest quarter since the official sector
began buying agan n the second quarter of 2009 The Central Banks reporting net purchases were a mixture of banks
with a known, existing pragramme of purchasing and one or iwo newcomers

in a conlinuation of the recent frend, buymng 15 concentrated among the Central Banks of emerging econormes, which
remain largely underweight in therr allocation to gold

Russia, which continues to buy local produchon with the express intention of diversifying ils reserves, purchased 26
lonnes dunng the course of the quarter This takes Russta's gold holdings to around 837 tonnes, equivalent to almost 8%
of the country’s reserve assets

In August, South Korea's central bank announced that it had purchased 25 tonnes of gold over the course of June and
July Added to the existing holdings of 14 4 tonnes, South Korea now owns 39 4 lennes of gold, which makes it the 45th
largest holder of gold m the world according to the Augus! table of world official gold holdings Elsewhere in Asia,
Thailand's central bank made a further purchase, adding 17 0 tonnes lo its reserves

Mexico added to the buying seen in the first quarter with an additionat purchase of 59 tonnes Over the year-to-date,
Mexico has added almost 100 tannes to ils reserves, boosting total gold holdings to 106 D tonnes The 429 3 tonnes of
recycling aclivity in Q2 was subdued, 3% down year-on-year and only sightly above the average of the last 10 quarters of
407 3 tonnes  This modest result Is particularly interesting given the record price levels reached during the quarter
Recycling In developed markets was steady, with the decline resulting wholly from weaker recycling levels in emerging
markets

A number of factors appear to be behind the decline in recycling activity, including an increasing acceptance of higher
pnce lavels, which 1n turn drive bullish price expectations, the depletion of near-market stocks, and improving economic
conditions in a number of those countries in which recycting 1s prevalent (most notably Indiz}

Outlook & Pricing

Wilh strang fundamentals behind the current geld pnce we believe that the pnce of gold 1s set to ramain comfartably above
$1.000 for the foreseeable future and above our long term cash production cost

The Eurgpean sovereign debt cnisis 1s serving to add to market volatility A fight to safe haven Invesiment asset classes
such as gold is helping to keep the price of gold high
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Key Performance Indicators

We assess lhe perfarmance of our business aganst several KPis which are aligned to our strategle and operational goals
These KPls are monitored on a continuous basis and allow us to prioritise operaticnal objectives and rmeasure progress
agalnst our strategy in the current year the Group adopted several additional KPls to align itself wilh practices in the

mimng industry and to better reflect VGM's strategic priorities

Financlal KPis

Data Turnover £8ITDA' Gash costperounce  Gash cost per tonne Operating cash flow
(52000 000) (£'000°000) sold' mined & I'I'QI”‘ed' per share'
{USsi0z)' {US$onne} (poncelshare)
- o
~N N
a o — L EE=E o
O« o o o o d9 o
O o O = = =] o o O
NN~ NN N &N
£47 9 £22 Usst,340 Uss14s (2 75} pence
Definitlon Turnover volume of EBITDA (earnings Cash cost per Cash cost per Qperating cash fiow
{Full definiion gold sold during lhe before interest, ounce soldis tonne mined & pershare is
for Non-IFRS penod mullphied by taxes, depreclation,  calcutaled by dividing  miiled is calculated calculated by dividing
measures are the gold pnce and amortisatlon}is  the aggregate cash by dwding the {he operaling cash
provided on achieved over lhe the net profit or loss costsincurred inour  aggregate cash fow generaled or
page 22) periog excluding mining operations by  costs incutred i our ulllised In operations
Sfinance income the ouncas of gold mining cperations by by the weighled
ofinance expense sold the tonnes mined average of the
and milled number of Ordinary
»lax expense Shares In [ssys
sdeprecialion and
amortisalion
Parformance In  Turnover lotalled EBITDA was Cash cost per Cash cost per Oparating cash flow
2011 £47 @ million In 2013, £2 2milhon a ounce sold tonne mined & per share was {2 75)
an incoease of 18% decreaseof £6 8 wiereased to milled increased pence in 2011
on 20190, as a fesult millien on the year L15%1,349 as rasull from US$109/lonne compared lo 5 18
of increased gold ending 2010 This ol lower {han in2010to0 pencain 2010 This
prices (Furthes reduclion was dnven expecled grades USsi145itonne in decrease was a
infarmatlon is get out by a comblnaiion of mingd and increased 2011, the majonty of rasult of lower
inthe Financial lower than expecied unit costs {Furlher his vanance was Tevenues, Increased

Review an pages 17
to 22)

grade, and higher
unit costs (Further
Information is set cut

infaremation is set out
in the Financlal
Review on pages 17

attrbutable increases
in tonnes mined from
underground

und costs and higher
working capital
requirements

In the Financial {622} {Further information {Further Information
Review on pages 17 I 58t out in the is 38t outin the
to 22) Financiat Review on Financial Rewiew on

pages 17 1o 22)

pages 17 to 22)

Importance Turnover s a useful EBITDA Is a useful Cash cost per Cash cost per Opaerating cash flow
mdicator to measwe  indicatar of the ounca sold allowe tonne mined & persharsisa
aur progress towands  Group's ablilty to us lo moniter the key  milled allows measure of tha
our targeted generate aperaling drivers thalimpacten  managementto track  Group's abilily to
praduction and the cash flow, which wll our profitability, and compare Costs generate cash flow
efiect of changing allow 1t 4o fund its revenue per fonne on a monihly basis from ils busingss

gold prices on ous sustalning and and cost per tonne regardiess of
profilabulity and expansion capial variances In lonnes
operating cash flow needs mined and milted

1 EBITDA, Cash cost per ounce so'd, Cash cosi per icnne mimed and milled and Operating cash fiow per shate are non IFRS
financial performance measures with no standard meaning under (FRS Refer 1o “don IFRS measures an page 22 for datalled
definilions on each measure
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Operatlonal KPla

Data Gold Shipped Tolal devetopment Tolal resources per Lost time injury
{02) metres share {02/1,000 frequency rate
{m) shares) {frequency tate)
288 || 888 || 888 || 888
™ N NN N N~ N NN
53,481 24,453 47 1313
Definition Gold Shipped is the Total development Total resources per Lost time injury
{Full definition Group's total ounces of melres representthe  share are calculated frequency rate
for Non)FRs &4 sold duting the aggregate of both as the total of the (LTIFR} s a
measufes are  Penod capital and normnal measured, indicated measure of lost time
provided on metres (but excludes  and Inferred clalms per milllon
page 22) stoping) mined over resolLrces expressed hours worked
the penod as containet ounces,
divided by the number
of shares in {ssue,
using a ratio of 1
ounce per 1,000
shares
Performance Gotd Shipped totalled Total development Total resources per Lost time Injury
In 2011 53,461 ounces, metres were 24,453 share oqualled 47 Gz frequency rate
compared 0 54,842 melres for the ygaran /1,000 shares decreased from 14
ounces n the previous increase of 15,734 (Fudher Infarmationis  in 2010 to 13 13in
yoar This reduction matres over the year setoutinthe Reserve 2011 Thials an
was a result of lower ended Augusl 2010 and Resource improvernent on the
qrades being delivered Thisis a resuit of the Stalementon pages t  pravious year
to the mill and lower Group's accelerated pages 27 to 29) however we would
recovery rotes (Further  development leok to continue to
Information [s sel out In programme Improve on this
the Chlef Executive during the coming
Olficer's review and year (Further
Operatlonal Review on Information 13 set
pages 8 to 8 and pages oulin Corporate
13 10 14) Responsibilty
reviaw on page 23)
Importance Gold Shipped Total development Total resources per Lost time Injury
measures our prograss metres allows us fo share allows us to frequency rate aids
lo achieving cuf long FREasuUre our plogress  measure our ability to us to assess the
term production target fowards having discover niew ore effectrvaness of our
of 100,600 per annum sufficlent working bodies and to replace  heallh and safety
areas to achieve our resourca depletionas  pregramme and
praducton target a result of mining controls at our
aclivilles operations
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Operational Review

Year cnded Year ended % Variance
31 August 31 August
2011 2010

T T

Underground Mlnlngl Sulphlde Processing

a,rotalitoﬂnaé“Fﬁiﬁ’e“a R e B L N ATTIeRS A 308, 050 SR E T A0%T
ey iet e N S ioe s ES ik

Fut e P

Development {metres) 24,453 8,720 180%
ISuliphidelore deilveredi(fonnes), S, Sa S B B 0361005 T ek 2434 P Tt
Sutphlde head grade (grams / tonne) 5.00 7 46 (33%)
ey

7 S P e ST T e L S R T G
‘oxldg:Piantz=rs; - SR Gt e e e ¥ S B

Ore delivered (tonnes} 160,923 198 507 (19%)

‘_*"'

B e e R e e

Total (Sulphide + Oxide)

{Oreiprocessad:; (tonnes)“\‘, 2 TG e A ST a0 123 AT 024 T3
il - s A:.

N L
Average ore head grada {grams I tonne) 378 500 (24%)
iTotal RecoveryU)ss - 8%+ S 3 ol o R Bane% L hadeih i %)
Gold produced (ounces) 52,157 56 214 (7%)
{Gold shiphed(bundes). = 28 S m N Sa T R 2RSSR o SRR P o)

Cash Costs ——
iTotal'cashicost] o5t shippsd olince(Uss). 7 TR T ) 349‘,, ey oL
Total cash cost/ tonne (US$) 145 108

Operationally ttus year has been one of unprecedented activity at the Vatukoula Gold Mine, with dramatic increases in
underground tonnes mined and increased development metres We did however face operational challenges which
prevented us from reaching our targeted production, Tota! gold produced was 52,157 ounces, a 7% decrease on last
year's figure

tnderground Production

Dunng the year we mined 427,685 tonnes of ore and waste, a 40% increase on 304,959 tannes in 2010 This increase
was primanly dnven by the increased waste, and more strike drive development associaled with lhe accelerated
developmenl programms

The average grade for the year was also adversely affected by increased stnke drive development, which lowered the
overall grade from 7 46 grams of gold per tonne to 5 00 grams of gold per tonne Strike drives reduce lhe grade because
they are larger {3 5m high) access dnves which follow the ore body, while mining stopes typtcally are 1 1 m i height
Therefore as more tonnes are extracted from strike drives compared to stopes, the overall dilutrion of the ore body
(typically 0 50m wide) increases and therefora the grade mined decreases

Surface Proeduction

Processing of the oxide waste dump, previously identified as containing treatable oxide matenal, was completed in the
year As part of our exploration program we uncovered some additional oxide matenal that was mineable by open pit
methods This was undertaken to supplement our underground preduction while we are in the process of reinstating full
underground production In the year we processed a total of 160,923 tonnes of malena! at an average grade of 139
grams gold per tonne
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Vatukoula Treatment Plant ("VTP")

Tonnes of ore processed for the year was 498,123 lonnes, a 13% increase compared fo the year ending 2010 (441,924
tonnes) The increase was drivan by the increased mining activities from underground which increased ore delivered fo
the mill by 38% This increase was off-sel by a decrease in surface ore delivered to the mill, from 198,607 tonnes in 2010
to 160,923 1n 2011

The average grade processed decreased from 5 00 grams of gold per tonne in 2010, to 3 78 grams of gold per torne in
2011 The key dnivers for this reduction were the lower grades delivered from underground, which represented a larger
portion of the matenal processed this year The lower grades delivered also reduced recovenes within the processing
circurt by 4% to 81 26% in the year {2010 84 58%)

At the VTP we replaced the terliary crusher We have also refurbished and replaced where necessary large amounts of
steslwork and repaired the roofs and buldings in general The fine ore bin was relned The plant conlinues 1o operate
satisfactonly — bul does require additional refurbishment of the secondary crushers and screens, over the coming year

During the year we have been investigating ways of optimising our processing plant and increasing recovenes [n
particular we have been carrying oul bactena leach test work Preliminary results have been very encouraging with gold
dissolution of betwaen 95% lo 98% A larger test program has been included n this year's capilal program

Cash Costs

As a result of 1) the lower underground grade delivered to the processing plant, 2) the increased tonnages mined from
underground and 3) increases in industry cost generally, our cash cost per ounce of gold shipped increased to US$1,349
Overall cash cost per tonne mined and milled also increased to US$145 (2010 US$109)

Employees

At the year end we employed 1,144 indviduals as either full bme employees or as casual labour Of our permanent
workforce 50% are involved in direct mining operations, with a further 10% in underground mining support services We
also use the ssrvices of local contractors for ground transport, and n that regard a further 272 individuals are directly
Invelved in the operations at the Vatukoula Gold Mine
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Exploration Review

In January 2011, the Group announced the commencement of its 2011 exploration prograrme, which was designed to
fulfill two primary objectives

1 Identfy and detail new areas for mining and delineate expansion potential within the VGM Special Mining Lease areas
2 Undertake regional exploration on the company's Special Prospecting Licenses

Two dnill rigs were commussioned to underiake the drll programme The exploration teams were briefed to

1 Establish extensions to existing as well as new surface oxide mineralisation
2 Discover underground high-grade ore bodies adjacent to existing resources
3 Examine previously dnlled exploration targets on the Company's Special Prospecting Licenses

The exploration programme 18 an essential component in the long-term operational sustainability strategy at the Vatukoula
Gold Mine  Our overall objective is lo increase life-of-mine operations and to improve our understanding of the full extent
of gold mmeralisalion in the Tavua Caldera, using modern-day geological and exploration toals

The exploration results will guide the company 1n regards {o the potential for expansion of the current operations The
combination of extensive histonical mining data, minimal exploratton in recent years and modern exploration techniques
provides an exceptional opportunity to make another discovery of economic mineralisation in the Tavua Caldera

Surface Oxide Exploration

Dunng the year a tolal of 7,205 metres, were drilled as part of the surface oxide exploration programme The large
majonty of these holes were focused on wenbfying a potential resource within the current Special Mining Leases
Approximately 2,000 metres were dnlled on our Special Prospecting Licenses to cany out some confirmation dnlling on a
previously discovered deposit The majonty of the dnling was carnad out by reverse circulation drilling on a 100-metre
grd Diamond dnlling were utlised to provide detall In relation to structure and onientation of the mineralisation

The objective of this phase of drlling was to define the strike extensions of the verical or near vertical mneralised
structures, which have been histonically mined from surface The holes completed to date have confirmed the presence of
multiple mineralised structures along strike from previously mined areas These struclures are currently being interpreted,
and along with histonca) information that VGM has at i\s disposal, are lo be compiled with the intention to produce an inhal
Mineral Resource model

Mine Envelope Exploration

A total of 7,228 melres were drlled on the mine envelope explorafion programme All of these holes were dnlled by
diamond dnfling, either from surface or underground The dnlling was deswgned to intersect possible down-dip and along
strike extensions of known are bodies

The most significant results to date have been,

1 The intersection of the Prince flatmake ore body below the 16th level (approximately 540 metres below surface) Four
holes were drilled of which two intersected the Prince flalmake with the most significant intersechion being 1 30 metres
at 23 19 grams of gold per tonne

2 The intersection of the Matanagala flatmake between 492 metres and 600 metres below surface The most significant
intersection was a composite intersection of 0 77 metres at 8 81 grams of gold per tonne

Both of Ihese intersections are an important step forward In the mine envelope dnling as they demonstrate the existence

of mineralised siruclures outside our cusrent Mineral Resource mode! and at some distance from our current workings
{between 100 and 300 metres)

15




Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Business Review
For the year ended 31 August 2011

Speclal Prospecting Licenses Exploration

The Special Prospecting Licenses exploration commenced in April 2011 and dunng the year 4,614 melres were driled No
significant results came from the inibiat stages of this programme, however post year end several stgnificant mineralised
intersections were encountered

Summary & Post Year and Exploration Results

We are happy with the results to date of our on-going exploration programme, particularly with the discovery of a new ore
body In Oclober, we announced the discovery, 300 metres norih of the existing mine workings, of a naw high-grade ore
zone, which the Company has named ‘Nilsen’ Nilsen Is the first new high-grade gold mineralised discovery at the
Vatukoula Gold Mine since the discovery of the Prince William are zone 1n the 1980s

The 2011 dnll programme had intersected high-grade mineralised struclures with significant compaosite intersections that
Included

« 124 7 grams of gold per tonne over 0 46 metres
s 33 6 grams of geld per lonne over 2 86 melres
« 25 46 grams of gold per tonne over 1 07 metres
+ 30 grams of gold per tonne cver (0 48 metres

The ore zone has been Intersected between 300 metres and 700 metres below surface {levels 11 to 23) and Is open along
strike and down dip Further work 15 planned to establsh the full size and scale of the Nilsen discovery and we look
forward to defining the results of our 2011 dnll programme over the near term so as to be able to introduce new ore zone
discovaries mto our future mie development plan
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Financial Review

The purpose of this review 1s to provide a detatled analysis of the Group's consolidated 2011 results and the main factors
affecting the financial performance The Financial Review should be read in conjunction wath the financial statements and
associated notes on pages 38 - 86

Year endad 31 Year ended 31

August 2011 August 2010

e S SEE e RS RS S i, ST BT R B T ST B AR e S
onnigs Treated s et S L e T R R 128 S e A 02e,
Mine Head Grade {g/t} 3.78 5 00

ReCaTore FTREL S i g RS F L S Rt S o e e g R e e

IREGOVeVI(I R B T TR e L e e AT S e e e st
Gold Shipped (oz) 53,461 54 642

Ty s BT a0 908z

{Reveniie (000 RS T T e AT eeE T 5403543

EBITDA (£'000) 2,150 8,896
T EG Py T T B T e il SR e [ T i o o L T e T e TR S wg

-Cashi(uised)T geherated from oparating activitiési(£'000): 5 FEise 8 o (21312) - i G o

(Loss) / Profit (£'000) (2,315) 4,523
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~CashiBostlUSsiounce) ot B S R BB N L e L SO e SR SRR
Avorage realised gold price {US$/founce) 1,439 1,157
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1Basie (Loss) | Earnings per sHaré:(dence) siali 1 § S iip nedian 7 22 076 00 2 0 unﬁfﬁféﬁe 32}

Dunng the vear the Group benefited from the increased gold prnce which resulted in a hugher turnover figure, however
overall the Group's financial results were adversely affected by the continued accelerated development programme and
soime challenging operational issues encountered dunng the year Increased mining costs per tonne and higher volumes
of matenal treated combined with lower grades (grams of gold per tonne) resulted In a loss of £2 3 million and cash
outflows from operating activiies of £2 3 milhon The lower grades and Increased cosis also affecled the cash cost per
ounce sold which increased to US$1,340

Revenue

Revenue for the year of £47 9 million was 19% higher than the prior year perlod of £40 3 milion The Group'’s year ¢n year
sales volume decreased by 1,181 ounces which adversely affected revenue, however the Group benefited from the large
increases In gold pnces duning the year The average realised gold price was US$1,43% in 2011 compared to US$1,157
per ounce in 2010

Commodity Prices

Gold prices have a significant impact on the Group’s revenue, nel profits and its ability to generate cash flows In 2011 the
price of Gold reached US$1,878 and traded belween a range of US$1,250 to US$1,878 per ounce Market gold prices
averaged US$1,448 compared lo cur average realised gold pnce of US$1,439 per ounce

The market price of gold has been influenced by sovereign debt concerns, low US dollar Inlerest rates, Investment
demand, government monetary pohicies and negalive fong term production global gold production With the continued
global easing of monetary policy and large fiscal deficits in some of the major developed countnes, there is a possibility
that inflation and US Dollar depreciation could occur m the next few years With these two dnivers, coupled with the
increased demand for gold from investors as a result of the continued finanaial uncerlamnty, we should see a positive
influence on the price of gold
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Cost of Sales and Operating Expenses

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
{£'000) August 2011 August 2010
Gelin Fd e s g DR e 3
ﬁgfgsfrgf?sugles,_
Mining {29,731) (17 949)
iz B S D 1 R A S s ST e R SR A AN Tl AR (R et
iProcBesliig Tn R i e e B S T 471) 4
Overheads {4, 403) (2, 612)
“’ﬁ"e&?&?‘mﬂ° ‘A:—A!ﬁr o ’ﬁp}—w@ B TR \ﬂ.g.m:f«r Y L T S S Rmr FELT e Y3 ..u“ ;‘*‘ﬂ? )1,, 4‘,
s e M R e 1),
Administrative expenses (2,301) (3,229)
aRchana. PR T e D e o E e e e DA D
kEoréign'eXchiange galine: Rh 2T e LB T TR T e e Tl B R e 82t
Depreciation and amortisation (6,074) (5,187)
T OlAIE R BATs R o BSRE 1° Jioly B DOt oo rE DO B s AT RGN RS DO S0 i g |
et e A e R I B e T S BB e 7 (36483, 1

Cost of Sales and Operating Expenses increased to £51 5 million in 2011 from £35 5 mithon in 2010 A 40% increase In
the waste and ore mined dunng the year elevated costs by £6 4 milion A 13% increase i the ore milled elevated the
costs by £1 millon The remaining £8 6 million is attnbutable to

¢ an mcrease In unit mining and miling costs which represented £6 0 millron in additional costs,
* a £0 8 milbon increase in overhead and administrative costs,

» an increase in the value of gold shipped which elevated the gold duty pad to £0 2 million,

» higher amortization and depreciation charges of £0 9 mlllion, and

= adecrease in unrealised foreign exchange gams on intercompany loans of £0 6 miflion

A breakdown of the key dnvers behind the Increase in cost of sales and operating expenses is shown i the graph below

£60,000

£50,000

£4D,000

(=]
8 £30,000

£

£20,000

£10,000

£0

Cost of Sales  variance due  Vanance due Change in unit Change Inunit Net Change in  Cost of Sales
and Operating increased ore  toincreased emining costs  processing othercosts  and Operating
Expenses 2010 and waste  ore processed costs Expenses 2011

mined
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As oullined above the variance in mining costs represented the key dnver to the mcrease in costs compared to the
previous year The mining costs tolalled £28 7 million for the year This represents an increase of £11 8 million from the
prior year periad (E17 9 miliion) A 40% increase in lhe waste and ore mined dunng the year elevaled costs by £6 4
millon The remalning £5 1 million 1s primanly attributable to

an increase in underground direct mining costs of £1 5 million which can be aitnbuled to an increased market prices of
explosives, fuel, heavy vehicle tyres and other mining consumables,

a £ 1 3 milion Increase in Jabour, engineering and other cosls mainly attributable to larger higher maintenance costs
on heavy vehicles,

a £1 1 milhon Increase in power, compressed air and pumplng costs manly due higher pumping and compressed air
costs associaled with accessing mare remote araas of the mine, and

expensing the gold in cireust drawn down in the peniod, which increased compared to the previous year and increased
costs by £1 1 million

A detalled breakdown of the muming expenses and the vanances year on year for the Group are shown in the table and

graph below
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
{£'000) August 2011 August 2010
o I e e A e e T R S O RS
Variable direct mining costs 9,541 6,028
R e R T TR T e
Engineering and other costs 8,689 4773
TR e B S R e e e e P
Gotd stock movement (365)
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| owimiding eXpensés. o iR R i D e TR DS 7640y
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:1 035
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£25,000 i o e e
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£10,000 J;
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Minlng Costs Varnance dve  Variance in Variance in Labour, Power, Gold stotk  Mining Costs
2010 increased ore  underground  surfac direct  Englneering  compresssed  movement 2011
and waste direct unlt unlt costs  and other costs  airand
mined costs pPUMpINg costs

Deprectation and amortisation was £6 1 million for the year This represents an increase of 17% from the pricr year {£5 2
miflion} This increase I1s due to the higher capital invesiment base employed in fate 2010 and in 2011 as a result of the
accelerated development programme, capital equipment replacement programme and the rale of depreciaton when
compared to older capital development and equipment
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Cash Costs

Cash cost for the year ending 31 August 2011 were US$1,348 per ounce sold (2010 US$884 per ounce) This increase in
cash cosls can mainly be atinbuted to lower grade of ore delivered to the mill and consequently lower recovery rates The
lower grades are a function of the accelerated development programme the Group has been carrying ouf at the Vatukoula
Gold Mine

This programme results in a fugher dilution of the ore body, as we excavate the required underground nfrastructure and
access required for our sustainable produclion larget As a portion of the increase 1n cash costs per ounce the decrease in
grade and recovery represents a US$341 per ounce increase in the cash cost The remaining increase of US$123 per
ounce Is altributable to the increase in cash cost per tonne as previously oullined

The lable below provides a reconciiation betwaen cost of sales, operating expenses and cash costs to calculate the cash
cost per ounce sold,

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
August 2011 August 2010
EMINIG (000)57 #5208 i e ; R e IN)E, AT T040)
Processing (£'000) (9 144) (7.471)
OVao RS GO B AT s B e e g s Tt a0 e B G R Ty
Gold duty {£'000) (1,440) {1,216)
SNine admilniatrative cOsts (£ 000 400, 5 3+ il Yo ey Lo Lk o e Moagen T s Y (11689);
Totat cash costs of production (£'000) (44 962) (30,837)
OBE HUSHToTelon eRonano S ate e B T P B P O e e 20
Gold Sold (Oz) 53,4614 54,642
;Tonnes mingdand milled \Sie Bn TuBdesny I e SR vy, 2498128 W 0 P 220410043
Cash cost per ounce sold (US$IOz) 1,349 884
iCasicust poronne miTed ARA TIISa (USSoNTS) Seri i, Ls e s T B o,

Administrative Costs

Admirustrative expenses totalled £2 3 mithon for the year ended August 2011 which was a 29% reduclion in costs from the
pnor year of £3 2 millon The administrative expenses are those costs associated with maintaining the London office and
the administrative expenses In Fii not directly altnbutable to operating actwiies Costs include salanes, office rent,
regulatory, audit, legal fees and investor relaled expenses The decrease Is pnimanly due o a £4 3 milllon re-assignment
of Fiian administrative cosls to overhead costs The Laondon adminisirative expenses increased by £0 4 million compared
to last year as a result of increased salary expenses and Increased {ravel expenses associated with investor relations, and
increased site supervision in the last quarter of the year

Exploration and Evaluation Costs

As highlighted in the exploration review, the Group embarked on a significant exploration campaign during the year This
was the first such campaign for almost ten years and in this year we incurred £2 7 mitlion this year compared to the £0 3
millon in 2010 All the exploration and evaluation costs were capitahised as an Intangible Asset in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 6 Exploration for and Evatuation of Mineral Assets

Taxation and Other Expenses

During the year the Group had a tax credit of £1 6 million (2010 £0 8 miliion) This tax credit anises as a result of the
refease of the deferred tax ltability The year on year change is predominantly due to a change in the UK corporation tax
rales, which decreased the deferred tax ltability by £1 ¢ mullion in the current year
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Other expenses amounted to £0 4 milhon in 2011 down from £1 1 mullion in the previous year This decrease was pnmarily
due to credits to Inventory obsoclescence and doubtful debts of £0 4 milion in this year as opposed to a debit of £0 4 duning
the same period lasl year A charge of £0 8 millhon (2010 £0 7 milhon) was incurred as a result of the issue of share
options I1ssued to staff employed in Fiji and the United Kingdom

EBITDA

EBITDA for the year ended 31 August 2011 decreased to £2 2 million from £8 9 millan in the pnor year This decrease
was dniven by lower grades delivered to the milll and increases In urit mining costs, this decrease was partly offset by
increase in the average gold price achieved during the year

A reconciliation between net profit for the penod and EBITDA 1s presented below

LR [pfoft 1OF e BSTIOHEF TS5 5, 7 e aBER. 3 el GBSy A 023
Less income tax credit {1,618} (838)
*PIS doprecialion and amorisallon oXpeNge s, = bu - 7ol niuls it AP 6074 0745 Sty (587
Less finance income (98) (39)

- Plus finance expense;“Sscm T AR A LN B 8 40 B DRI SRRSOt A R Gh63]
EBITDA 2,150 8,996

Basic Loss Per Share

Bastc loss per share for the year ended 31 August 2011 was 2 76 pence compared to basic earnings per share of 6 32
pence This decrease was driven by the net loss for the year,

Cash Flow

Net cash used In operating actvites was £2 3 million for year, an decrease of £6 4 million on the pnior year (cash
generated of £4 1 milllon) Prior to working capital the net operating ncome was £1 7 mitllton compared to £8 6 milhon in
the previous year, this reduction was due to lower EBITDA The net operating income before changes in working capual
was further reducad by Ihe changes in working capital which used £2 4 milhon {2010 £4 4 million) These changes In
working capital were a result of an increase in store consumables, increases n the value of the gold 1n ciroul, Increases in
trade receivables and prepayments on capital and operaling expenditure

Cash flow used in Investing activiies equated to £11 0 million for the year which represents an 9% increase from the prior
year of £10 1 milion Of the £11 0 millien used n investing aclivities £6 5 miflton (2010 €8 2 milion) was used in the
purchase of plant and equipment and £4 6 million (2090 £39 millon) was used n underground development and
exploration actviies The continued investment in the Vatukoula Gold Mine represents the continued capital expenditure
required to achieve our production growth strategy and in the long term our expansion sirategy

Cash provided by financing activities for the year ended the 31 August 2011 was £7 3 millon (2010 £17 7 million} The
large majonty (£6 million} of this relates to a placing carned aut in June 2011 which was further increased by tha exercise
ot options and warrants during the year At the 31 August 2011 the Group had cash and cash equivalents of £6 9 million
(2010 £12 8 imullon)

Financlal Position

Intangible assels increased from £33 7 millron 1n 2010 to £34 1 mullion in 2011 The increase 1s primanly atirbutable to the
Increase of exploration and evaluation costs which totalled £2 7 million This increase was offset by the amortisation of the
intangible mining asset recognised on acquisition of the Vatukoula Geld Mine i April 2008 The net book valug of plant
property equipment and mine properties development was £305 million (2010 £251 million) The mamn capital
expendiure drivers being those outlined in the cash flow used in Investing i activities section above, these were offsel by
depreciation charges of £3 6 mithon (2010 £2 2 millton)
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Total assets increased from £82 9 mition in 2010 to £87 7 miliien in 2011 The increase s, for the large part, due to an
increased amount of tangible assets as well as increases in inventories and trade and other receivables These increases
ware offsel by decreases in the inlangible asset and cash and cash equivalents

Total current and non-current liabilities for the year ended 31 August 2011 were £12 3 million, a decrease of £2 2 million
form the balance of £14 5 million in 2010 This decrease is mamnly due to the £1 6 million release of the deferred tax
hability recognised on the acquisition of the Vatukoula Gold mune th April 2008

Kiran Morzaria
Finance Director
12 December 2011

Non-IFRS Measures

The Group has ideniified certain measures in lfus report thal are not measures es dafined under IFRS Non-fFRS financial measures
disclosed by the direclors and management are provided to shareholders as additonal information in order to provida them with an
alternalive melhod of assessing the Group's financial condition and operaling resuits These meastres are ol in accordance with, or a
subshtute for IFRS, and may be different from or inconsistent with non-IFRS measures used by other companies These measiires are
explalned below

Average realised gold price 1s & non-IFRS financial measure and is calculated by dividing the tolal revenue for the year by the lotal
ounces sold during the year and converting the GBE value to US$ al the average lorgien exchange rate over the year

EBITDA Is a non-IFRS measure The group calculates EBITDA as (loss)/profit for the penod excluding

+*  Income fax credils or expense
*  Finance expense

»  Finance incoms

»  Depraciation and amortisalion cherges, and
»  Goodwill inpairment charges

EBITDA i1s mntonded lo provide addifional informalion lo mvestors and analysts It doas not have a standard defirution under IFRS end
olther compames may calculate EBITDA differenitly Refer lo page 21 es part of the financial review section for a raconchation of profit to
EBITDA EBITDA should not be considered a subshilute or in Isolalion for measures of parformance as prepared in accordance with
IFRS, as it excludes the impact of cash cosls of financing acivitles and taxes and the changes of working capltal balances,

Cash cost par ounce sold / per tenne mined and milled are non-1FRS financial measures Cash costs include all cosls assoclated with
mining and processing the unit of measure, inclusive of alf cosls absorbed into Inventory, as well as royallies, production taxes and mine
overheads/administrative costs The cash costs exclude foreign exchange gains, depreciation and amortisalton expenses, impairment
charges, Inventory obsolesces, rehabilitation charges, doubliul debts and share based paymenis These cash cosis ere aggregated and
divided by either ounces of gold sold or the tonnes mined and mifled lo reach the relevant non-IFRS financial measure

Operating cash flow per share 1s a non-IFRS financial measure and Is calctiated by dviding the Nat cash (used) / generaled in
operaling activities by the welghted average number of Ordinary Shares in Issue
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Corporate Responsibihty

We belleve that to operate effectively and profitably VGM needs o establish mutually beneficial refationships within the
community that we operate We need {0 maintain these relabonships (o belp us ensure a stable operating environment
and allow access to our exploration assels

Community Relations

The Valukoula Gold Mine has under previous owners had some 1ssues with its community relations Qver the course of
2011 there has been an improvement in the relationships between our Company and our local stakeholders The mamn
ways we have been doing this have baen

a) regular engagement wath the local communities, allowing open and frank discussions and respecting stakeholders
CONCEmns,

b) maximising the communities' opperlunity to benefit from employment and local procurement, and

c} developing a long-term plan to assist focal communities to pursue their own sacio-economic priorities

Some of the main material contnbulions we make to the local community are, the provision of subsidised power and water,
sponsorship of local sporting clubs and events, renovation or construction of staff housmg (47 houses) and ihe
contribution of F$ 6 mblion to the Vatukoula Sccla) Assistance Trust Fund

Management expect that the conclusion of the Valukoula Social Assistance Trust Fund is immnent, the Trust
implementation documents having been approved by the Cabinet of the Government of Fii - The trustees are expected to
administer the F$8million dollars of assistance coninbuled by the Group for the benefit of those employees still redundant
after the former owners of the Vatukoula Gold Mine ceased operalions in December 2008

Health and Safety

Safety s a fop prionty for mine management Dunng the year under review we expenenced a Lost Time Injury Frequency
Rate ("LTIFR") of 13 per 1 millon man hours worked This i1s extrémely commendable in the high nsk environment of an
underground gold mine  Safely in the workplace 1s regarded as a top priority at ali imes  We insist that ali our employees
work according to stnngent safety praclices and we are all working toward our target of a zero LTIFR

Environment

Over the year we have developed a comprehensive environmental policy, which will be implemented over the coming
year The policy was developed and will be reviewed by independent thued parties Current reporting systems and
procedures recard all significant environmental impacts and track our remedial and preventative measures

One of the key consumables at the mine 1s energy which currently is provided by fossil fuels We have been examining
opportunities 1o reduce our reliance on diesel power generalion, in particular we are looking to establish an of-take
agreement or jont venture with the FSC The FSC have completed a feasibility study on the commussioning of a bio-fuet
{sugar cane waste and wood chip) co-generation power plant Construction 1s scheduled to begin in calendar 2013 subject
to finance
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RIsk Management

Pnncipal nsks and uncertaintios

The Board annually reviaws the key rnisks facing the business together with making assessment of the controls for

managing these risks where possible The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are as follows

Risk

MitigationfComment

Potenttal impact

Furher information

\Slraleglc risks
Reserve and resource estimates

The Group's mineral reserves and
resources are estimates based on
soveral assumptions, including
geologlcal, mining, metaliurgical and
other technical factors There can
be no assurance thal the anlicipated
tonnages or grades will be

achieved

Single asset nsk

All of the Group's revenue ts defived
from production of the Vatukoula
Gold Mine in Fiji [n order to ensure
conltnuad production and expansion
to the current operations the
company need to build in addilional
capacity and develop further growth
apportunities

Financial risks

Commuodity pnces

The Group's financial pedformance
is dapendent on the price of gold
and diesel Adverse movements in
gold pnice and diesel price
movements could have a materal
impact on the Group's resulls and
operations

Costs and capital expenditure

The Group operales m an industry
which has experienced shortages in
consumables and capital equipment
and as such pnces can vary
significantly year on year These
vanations may adversely affect
operating cash flow and the Group's
financtal position

-

T

B [l

The Group continually momtors High
and reconciles the produclion

targets and mme plans agamst

mineral reserve and resousce

figures Our mmeral reserve and
resources are updated annually

and are prepared to Lhe

Austratasian Code for Reporting

of Explorakion Results, Mineral
Resources and Ore Reserves

The Group's management has High
implemented an accelarated
devslopment programme to
develop spare capacity in the
underground mining
Infrastructure and in addition is
assessing the wider prospecting
heenses it holds The Group will
also asses other opportunities
outside of Fijf they are
presented to the Group

~ n 1

The execulive board constanlly High
momitors the commodity prices
and its potentlal effects on
operaling cash flow and
profitability The Group's stratagy
however [s to provide maximum
exposiure to Gold hence no
hedging strategias have been
amployed Long term diesel
hedging will come from the
biomass power station fixing our
largest cost

The Group's management is High
constantly raviewing variation in
both activity costs and the
consumables drving them We
will seek to further mitigate these
costs by entering into long-term
supply contract where possible
In additton management carry
out cash flow analysls and
sensitivihies to miligate iquidity
risk
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The Group's Mmeral
Reserve and Resource
statemant are set out on
pages 27 to 29

A review of qur operational
and exploratian activilies
and potential organic growth
opportunilies are sat out in
the Cperational and
Exploration revisw on pages
13 to 14 and pages 16 to

16

Funther information 1s set
out in the Market Review on
pages 9to 10 and the
Financral Review on pages
17t0 22

Further information [s set
out 11 the Financial Review
on pages 17 to 22
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MitigationfCommant

Potential impact

Further information

Risk
‘Operationalrisks . © . "
Business in n

Assets used in operatlons may
break down and current insurance
policies may not cover agalnst all
forms of risks due to certain
exchisions

Reserve and rescurce deplation

The Group's futurs profitabmty and
operating margins depend upon its
ability to replentsh reserves with
geological charactenstics to enable
mining at competitive cosls

Parsonnel

The key nsks in this area are as
follows

Loss of key semor management and
peraonnel, in particular highty skilled
engineess and geologisis

The lack of avallabliity of suitably
skilled indviduals in the vicnity of
the Group’s operations

Failure to maintain good fabour
relations with workers and for
unions may result in work
slowdown, stoppage or strike

Health and Safety

The Group employees who work in
the mines may be exposed to health
and safety nsks Fallure to manage
these risks may resulls in a work
slowdawn, stoppage or stilke andfor
may damage the reputation of the
Group and hence its ablity to
cperate

Environmentat

The Group may be lfable for losses
ansing from environmental hazards
associated with the Group's
activities and production methods,
ar may be required to undertake
extensive remedial claan — up
achion or pay for governmental
remedial clean up actions

The Group has implemented a
maintenance system which
should mitigate these risks In
addition we are carrylng out a full
risk assessment on this [ssue,
and will investigate if insunng
against some of these nsks will
be economic

The Group has idenified key
areas of resource and reserve
definition and further exploration
areas wilhin its current heenses it
has begun both pregrammaes

The Group seeks to provide
competitive compensatlon
arrangements Inclusive of
options packages

The Group recruits
internatronally, and as above
provide competitive
compensation packages

A labour relations officer has
been appointed and ensures
employees needs and
reguirements are hsard and if
appropnate, met The Group also
has an open dlalogue with key
stakeholders inclusve of worker
unions

The Group takes the Health and
Safely of employees and
conlractors very serlously and
monitor, review and improve our
health and safety initiatives on a
regular basis

Tha Group has an environmental
depariment with an allocated
budget for environmental
purposes The current polices
have been recommended by an
external third party and their
implementation will be audited
Water quality is monitored on a
regular basis, and we will monitor
air qualily in the near future
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High

High

High

High

High

High

High
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Further information is
available in the operations
review on pages 13to 14

Further Information Is
available In the Exploration
Review on pages 15t0 16

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Further information is
available in the Corporate
Responsibllidy section on
page 23

Further wformation is
avaiable in the Corporate
Responsibllity section on
page 23




Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Business Review

For the year ended 31 August 2011

Risk

Mihgation/Comment

Potential impact

Furthes Information

External nisks

Pohtical, legal and requlatory
developments

Fulure changes to the environmant
which may include increases in
taxes and / or royalties may result in
additional expense, restrictions on
operations and delay the
development of future projects

Community relallons

Under previous ownership the
Group's aperation in Fifi has
tusterically received criticisms from
external independent organisations

v -

We ltaise with the government
and relevant departments in Fijt
on many aspects of our day to
day opsrations and are proactive
in our approach in addition we
monitor the political landscape fo
see if there are likely changes in
policy that are likely to mpact the
Group's operations

The Group has a community
ralations departmant which
maintalns an on-going dralogue
wilh [ocal communities Currentiy
we are revlewing all our
community programmes We
expect from this review to
develop a long term sustainable
development programmae
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Not Applicable

Furlher information is
availlable in the Corporate
Responsibllity section on
page 23
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Reserves and Resources

Mineral Resource Statement

AMC Consultants Pty Ltd ("AMC") compleled a Mineral Resource estimate for VGM using geological and assay data
avaifable at 30 March 2011 The data supplied by VGM allowed AMC to generale a conslrained grade model and estimate
a Mineral Resource AMC estimated the Mineral Resources using the end of June 2011 surveyed face postions The
Mineral Resources at 31 Augusi 2011 were estimated by sublracting the production for the months of July and August
2011

The VGM Mineral Resource estimate 1s classified into Measured, Indicated and Inferred Mineral Resources based on the
current drilhole spacing, qualily of the drlling mformation and confidence in the geological controls on the gold
mineralisation and grade continaty The Mineral Resource estimate includes Measured and Indicated Mineral Resources
that will convert to Ore Reserves on apphication of modifying factors

The AMC Mineral Resourca estimate Is classified and reported in accordance with the 2004 JORC Code’

The Information In this statement of Mineral Resources 15 based on nformation compiled by Mr John Tyrrell who 1s a
Member of the Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and a full-time employee of AMC Consultants Pty Ltd Mr
Tyreell has sufiicient relevant expenence to be a Competent Person as defined by the JORC Code Mr Tyrrell consents to
the inclusion of this information tn the form and context in which it appears Mineral Resources listed as baing prepared by
AMC were estimated under the direct supervision of Mr Tyrrell

The following notes highhght assumplions used to generate the VGM underground Mineral Resource estimate

. An intercept width imes gold the cut of grade (‘COG") of 4 metre grams of gold per tonne ("m git Au") and a gold
COG of 2 grams of gold per tonne were applied to the rescurce models to obtain the esimated Mineral Resources

. The Mineral Reésource models were depleted for mining to 31 August 2011, using surveysd mine owtlines to 30
June 2011 and preduction figures for July and August 2011

. The Mineral Resource models use geological and assay dala available at 15 Apnl 2071

. The mmeralised envelope was defined using geological logging and assay information from diamond dnllholes
using a nominal lower gold cut-off grade of 1m g/t Au

. Extrapoclation of the interpreted mineralised struclure was imited to 20m to 50m between section lines and 5m to
25m at the ends of each section

. Samples are prepared and analysed by fire assay using a 25g charge at the on-sie laboratory

. In situ density dala was available from dnllhole samplng Densities were assigned to each of the modelled
struclures based on the average results from all avallable samples

. The estimation melhod used 30D wireframe and block modefling projecled to a 2D plane, with ordinary knging

interpolation A grade variable (the product of the honzontal or vertical intercept width and grade) was eshimated
using modslled semi-variograms and geostalistical analysis to determine knging search parameters The intercept
width was estimated separately and the grade back-calculated

. Grade times thickness top-cutling was applied in calculating the grade times thickness vanable

. The melailurgical response for the orebedres 15 well understood from actual production No recovery faclors were
applied to the Mineral Resource estimate

Tailings Mineral Resource

The Talings Mineral Resource estimate ts an estimate developed by GSA Global ("CSA") In March 2008, CSA cormpiled
an Independent Competent Persons Report titled "An Independent Competent Persons report for River Diamonds PLGC
covering lhe Vatukoula Gold Mine in Fiji, the Panguma Prospect n Sierra Leone and the Rio Novo Gold Prospect in Brazil”
("CSA CPR"), for incluston n the application for readmission to trading on the Allernative invesiment Market ("AlM") of the
London Stock Exchange

! Austratasian Code for Reporling of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ora Reserves, The JORC Code 2004 Editron,

Effeclive Decermber 2004, Prepared by the Joint Ore Reserves Committee of the Australasian Institute of Mming and Metallurgy,
Australian Institute of Geosclentists and Minerals Council of Australia (JORC}
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. The CSA CPR reported the 2006 Mineral Resources, including the Tallings Mineral Resource, according to the
JORC Code No further estimates or data 1s available al the time of this report AMC cannot venfy the estimate and
allocate a low reliability Lo the estimale

) The Tailings Mineral Resource 1s 200,000 ounces of gold, and approximately 10% of the total Measured and
Indicated Mineral Resources at VGM AMC beleves that the Tallings Mineral Resource may provide an opportunity
to improve the oulput of the operation, but alsc believes the relevance of the Tallings Mineral Resource 15 low
VGM plans to review the tailings resource 1n conjunction with the resuits of exploration programmes currently under
way, to determine the preferred means to extract the contaned gold VGM production plans do not include the
Tallings Mineral Resource pending this review and conversion of mmeral resources to ore reserves

Mineral Resource Table
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Overall there has been an increase 1n 201,000 ounces from the 2010 Mineral Resources These changes are atirbutable
to

. reduclions due o depletion of the models between faces - 126,000 ounces of gold
. additions due to remterpretation of previously modefled mineralised structures — 214,000 ounces of gold
. additions due to modelling of additional mineralised structures — 113,000 ounces of gold

Ore Reserve Statement

Based on the mine design generated by AMC and within the Measured and Indicated Minerat Resource porhons of the
underground VGM deposits, AMC estimated a Proved and Probable Ore Reserve of 3 3 Mt at 7 5 grams of gold per tonne
for contamned gold of 0 79 Moz using a gold price of US$1400/0z with a 4 48 grams of gold per tonne cut-off

Tha methodology used to detarmine the 2011 ore reserve estimate required stopes to be spht nto panels to alfow some
stopes to be partially mined such that only lhe panels with reserve classificalion were considered Access development to
the reserve stopes has been added to the mine plan if the panels meets the reserve classification

The VGM Ore Reserve astimate 15 classified and reported in the table below 1n accordance with the 2004 JORC Code

Mineral Reserve Table

".»5»1‘

tained

Tolal Proved Oro Reserve 059 898 017 0 60

018
Total Robable Ore Rusoive =y 2 267~ 5507 20 0= 710 62 Il o0 e 208 By G0 s 20,641 )
Total Ore Reservo 326 766 079 340 0.83

Note Values are rounded and may nol add correctly in this table

The reduction in Ore Reserve estimale from the 2010 estimate 15 mainly attributable to mining depletion over the past
year, with some minor addifions due 1o changes n the stope designs and cut-off grade
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Mineral Resources were converted to Ore Reserves recogmising the level of confidence in the Mineral Resource estimate
and reflecting any modifying factors Cre Reserves are included in the Mineral Resources eslimate throughout this report

The metal pnces, grades, recovenes and costs were used to identify mineable blocks to be included in the Ore Reserve
estimate The metal pnces and exchange rate used i the Ore Reserve estimate are

. Gold US$1400/0z
. Exchange Rate F$1 00 = US$0 54

The underground Ore Reserve estimates compnse the portions of the Measured and Indicated Mineral Resources for
which the appropniate mine planning has been undertaken and can be economically mined The Ore Reserves are derved
from the Mineral Resources by application of cut-off grades, stoping heights, diution factors and extraction ratio

The Proved Ore Reserve estimate 1s based on Mineral Resources classified as Measured, while the Probable Ore
Reserve estimale 1s based on Mineral Resources classified as Indicated after consideration of all mining, metallurgical,
social, environmental, statutory and financial aspects of the project

The Ore Reserve statement 1s based on information compited by Mr Junior Oding under the direct supervision of Mr David
Les Mr Qding and Mr Lee are both tMembers of the Australasian Instiute of Mining and Metallurgy and full-time
employess of AMC Consultants Pty Lid Mr Lee has sufficient relevant expenience fo be a Competent Person as defined
by the JORC Code

The following notes highlight assumptions used lo estimate the VGM Ore Reserve estimate

. Cut-off grade of 4 48 grams of gold per tonne
. Minimum stope mining width of 1 07m

. 10% stope mining dilution

. 95% developmenl recovery

AMC estmated the Ore Reserves using the end of June 2011 surveyed face postions The Qre Reserve at 31 August
2011 was estimated by subtracting the production for the months of July and August 2011
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Board of Directors

| C Orr-Ewing, Executive Chairman, age 69

Mr Orr-Ewing has been mvolved in the natural resources sector for 37 years His expenence covers both the ol and
mining industnes and he has been a dwector of UK and Canadian oil companies and Insh and Canadian miming
companmes Currently Mr Or-Ewing also advises a fund management company on its natural resources portfolics He
began his career as an tnvestment manager for the Shell Pension Fund in London after completing tus education as a
Chartered Accountant Mr Orr-Ewing also has extensive experiance in mternational financial affars  He was deeply
involved in the ol indusiry from 1971 through to 1987 with numerous companies m the North Sea, Libya, Nigena and
Algena Mr Orr-Ewing has also served as a director for a number of oIl and gas exploration and development compames
He s a graduate of Oxford Unwersity in geography and geology

D K Paxton, Chief Executive Officer {CEQ) age 57

Mr Paxton is a professionat engineer with over 36 years’ experience In the mining industry, starting with mme production at
Goldfields of South Afnca, and then ime at therr head office and culminating with 24 years as a mining analyst As a
mining analyst he has worked for a number of Canadian and UK stockbrokers, most recently Religare Hichens Harnison
Ple

K C Morzaria, Finance Director, age 37

Mr Morzana holds a Bachelor of Engineenng {Industnal Geology) from the Camborne School of Mines and an MBA
{Finance) from CASS Business Schaol He has 12 years of expenence in the mineral resaurce indusiry covering gold and
diamonds  Mr Morzana spent his first four years i exploration, mining and civil engineering working for Hightand Geld,
Firestone Diamonds and CL Associates He was appointed Flnance Director of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc in 2004 and
since then has been overseeing the development of its mining and exploration projects in Fijt, Sierra Leone and Brazil

D A Lenlgas, Non- executive Director, age 50

Mr Lenigas has over 25 years of experience in the gold, diamond, coal and base melals industnes Dawid 1s a Mining
Engineer with a Bachelor of Applied Science (Mining Engingenng - with distinction) He 1s Chairman of Lonrho Plc,
Lonzim Plc, Leni Gas & Qil Plc , Solo il Plc, and 1s also a non-executive direclor of Rare Earth Minerals Ple

J | Stalker, Non-executive Director, age 60

Mr Stalker 1s the Chief Executive Officer of Brazihan Gold Corporation, a Toronto-listad gold mining company He has
over thity years of development and cperattonal mining expenernce in Europe, Afnca and Australla He has worked his
way up from operational roles In the base and preclous metals arenas fo executive positions in some of the largest mining
companies Iin the world Mr Stalker was CEO of Berkeley Resources Ltd, CEQ of UraMin Inc ("UraMin™), and a Vice
President of Gold Fields Ltd , the fourth largest gold producer in the world at the time

J F Kearney, Non-executive Director, age 80

Mr Kearney is the Charman and President of Canadian Zinc Corporation with over 30 years expenence 1n the mining
industry worldwide With degrees in law, economics and busmess admimnistration, he has a strong background in corporate
development, finance and managing public compamnes, primanly n the mining fietd

J A MacPherson, Non-executive Director, age 69

Mr MacPherson 1s a Director of and founding charrman of Canadian Zinc Corporation He has been actve in public
markets, corporate finance and corporate development for over 30 years During this time he has led the strategic
development of several successiul ventures, pnmanly in the fields of miming and oll and gas Throughout his career he has
served as director of many private and public corporations hsted on the Toronto, AMEX and London Stock Exchanges
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Directors’ Report

The directors are pleased to present this year's annual repori together with the consolidaled and company financtal
statements for the year ended 31 August 2011

Principal activities

The princlpal activity of the Group was the operation of the Vatukoula Gold Mine 1n Fi as described on page 1 of the
Business Rewiew The principal activity of the Company was that of a helding Company for its subsidiary undertakings,
which are set out n Note 15 of the financlal statements

Results and dividends

The loss on ordinary achwibies of the Group for the year ended 31 August 2011 after taxation was £2 3 miliion (2010 profit
of £4 5 million)

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
Business review

A teview of the current and {uture development of the Group's business 1s given 1n the business review section of tivs
raport on pages 1 to 36

Given the nature of busmess and industry lhe key performance indicators are based on financial and operational
objectives set at the beginming of the year Performance in relation to these 1s highlighted on pages 11 and 12

The Business Review sets out a comprehensive review of the development and performance of VGM's business for the
year ended 31 August 2011 and the fulure developments The Business Review I1s set out on pages 1 to 38 of (his annual
reporl Alt information detailed in these pages is incorporated by reference into this Directors' Report and is deemed to
form part of this Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Statement

The corporale governance stalement set out on pages 35 to 36 i1s iIncorporated by reference into this Directors' Report and
15 deemed to form part of s Drectors’ Report

Post balance sheet avents

At the date thess financial statements were approved, being 12 December 2011, the directors were not aware of any
significant post balance sheet events other than those set aut in Note 32 of the financal statemenis

Future developments
A review of cur future davelopments ts given in the Review by the Chief Executive Officer on pages 610 8
Financial risk management

The Group's operalions expose  to financial nsks that include hguidity nisk, interest rate and forergn exchange nsk The
Group does not use dervative financial instruments to manage any of these nisks nor is hedge accounling applied

The Group depends on the Vatukoula Gold Mine for a substantial portion of its revenue and cash flow and, therefore, the
Group's business will be harmed o VGM's revenues are adversely affected. A review of this risk 15 given in our Risk
Management section on page 24

Gwven the size of the Group, the directors have nol delegated the responsibility of monitoning financial sk management to
a sub-commitiee of the board The Group's finance depariment implements the policies set by the board of directors
Further details of the Group's exposure to nsks ansing from financial instruments held are provided in note 25

Liquidity nsk

The Group actively manages its working finance to ensure the Group has sufficient funds for operations and planned
expansion As referred to in Note 3 of the financial statements, it 15 for this reason that the directors believe if 1s
appropraie lo prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis
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Interest rate cash flow sk

interest beaning assets are only cash batances that earn interest at a floating rate The Group does not have any vanable
rate debt and therefore it 1s not exposed lo interest rate cash flow risk on its debt

Forsign exchange nsk

The Group operates In Fiyi and Brazil The board has assessed its exposure, the details of which are provided in note
25(1) This situation 1s moniored on a regular basis, and as such the directors do not currently constder it necessary to
enter into forward exchange contracts

Crodit sk

Credlt risk 1s the nisk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter pariy to a financial instrument, fails to meet is
contractual obligations, and arises prnnclpally from the Group’s recelvables from customers The Group has credit nsk
management policles in place and exposures to credit nsk are monitored on an ongoing basis Management generally
adopts conservalive strategies and a tight controt on credit pohicy

Directors' insurance
The Company has taken oul an insurance policy to indemnify the directors and officers of the Company against l:abiity
whan acting for the Group

Drrectors

The following directors have held office during the year
I C Orr-Ewing

D K Paxton

K C Morzana

D A Lenigas

J | Stalker

J F Kearney

J A MacPherson

Directors’ interests

Directors’ interests, including family interests in the ordinary shares, were as follows

Beneficial Holding

31 August 2011 31 August 2010
| C Orr-Ewing* 517,774 452,683
D K Paxton 135,000 1¢0,000
K Morzarla 40,940 35,940
D A Lenigas 20,000 20,000
J | Stalker - -
J F Kearney - -
J A MacPherson - -
* of which 211,107 (2010 211,107) are held beneficially (post consolidation)
Directors also hold options over ordinary shares as follows

Number of Options

31 August 2011 31 August 2010
| C Orr-Ewing 300,000 300,000
D K Paxton 1,000,000 1,000,000
K C Morzaria 700,000 700,000
D A Lenigas 700,000 700,000
J | Stalker 700,000 700,000
J F Kearney 400,000 400,000
J A MacPhersen 400,000 400,000
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Politlcal and charitable donations
The Group made no charitable ar political donations duting the year
Substantial shareholdings

As at 28 November 2011 the following had notified the Company of disclosable interests of 3% or more in the nominal
value of the Company’s shares

Crdmary shares of 5 p %
Canaccord Nomnees Limited* 12,663,380 14 35%
Roy Nominees Limited 8,201,548 929%
Penson Financial Services Inc 4,835,912 5 48%
BNY Mellon Nominees Limited 4,556,641 516%
Persting Nominees Limited 4,056,207 4 80%
State Street Nominees Limited 3,214,081 364%
Barclayshare Nominees Limited 3,075,175 348%
Total 40,602,944 46 00%

* These shares are held by Canaccord Nominees Limited on behalf of and for the benefit of Canadian Zinc Corporation
Policy on payment of creditors

The Company seeks {0 maintain good terms with all of its trading partners It does not follow any specific code or
standard on payment practice However, it 15 the company's policy lo agree appropriate terms and condifions for its
transactions with suppliers, to ensure that the suppliers are made aware of those ferms and, provided the supplier has
comphed with ils obhigations, to abide by the terms of payment agreed Trade creditor days of the Group for the year
ended 31 August 2011 were 33 days (2010 56 days)

Related Party Transactions

Delails of relaled party transactions during the year are set out at note 27 to the financial statements

Gaing concern

After making engunes, the directors have formed a judgement at the time of approving the financial statements, that there
15 a reasonable expectaton thal the company and the group as a whole have adequate resousrces to contmue In
operalional existence for (he foreseeable future For this reason the directors have adopled the going concern basis in
prepanng the financial statements Further detalls are prowvided in note 3

Auditors

In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2008, a resolulion proposing that Mazars LLP be re-appointed will
be put to the forthcoming Annual General Meeling

Directors’ responsibllities in the preparation of financral statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and the financial slatements In accordance with EU endorsed
International Financial Reporting Stlandards (iFRS), interpretalions from the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) and those parts of the Companies Act 2008 applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS Company law requires directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period which give a true and farr
view of the state of affars of the Company and the Group and of the profit and loss for thal penod In prepanng the
financial statements, directars are reguired to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

s make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable, comparable, understandabie and prudent,

» ensure the financial statements comply with IFRS,

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Group will
continue in business
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The directors are responsible for keeping proper books of account which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that tha financia! statements comply
wilh the Companies Act 2006 The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The direclors are also responsible for the mantenance and integnly of the Group's website on the internet However,
information 18 accessible in many different counines where legislalion governing preparation and documentation of
financia!l statements may differ from that applicable in the Uniled Kingdom

Disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving the report 1s aware, all relevant audit Information, being
infermation needed by the auditar in connechion with preparing the report, has been provided or made avallable lo the
auditor Having made enquines of fellow directors, each director has taken all the steps that he 18 obliged to have taken as
a director in order to have made himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s
auditors are aware of that mmformation

On behalf f(he Board
/s
It
famirenet ™
—_ -
L

32 December 2011
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Corporate Governance Slatement
Compliance with UK Corporate Governance Code

The diractors recognise the value of the Combined Code on Corporale Governance thal was ssued in 2010 by the
Financial Reporting Council and whilst under AIM rules full comphiance is not required, the directors belteve that the
Company applies the Main Principles insofar as is practicable and appropniate for a public company of its size

Outhned below 1s a summary of how lhe company applies the Main Principles set out in the UK Corporate Governance
Code

Board of Directors

The board of directors compnises three execulive drectors, one of whom 1s the Chawrman, and four non-executive
direclors The directors are of the opinion that the board comprises a suitable balance and that the recommendations of
the Combined Code have been implemented to an appropriate level The board, through the Chief Executive Officer and
the Finance Director in particutar, mantains regular contact with its adwisers and public relations consultants in order to
ensure {hat the board develops an undersianding of the views of major shareholders about the company

Board Meetings

In addition to ad hoc meetings arranged to discuss particular transactions and events and the AGM, the full board met six
times during the year ending 31 August 2011  The board is responsible for formulating, reviewing and approving the
Company's strategy, financial activiles and operating performance Day to day management 1s devolved fo the executive
directors who are charged with consulting the board on all significant financial and operational matters  Consequently
decisions are made promptly and following consultation amongst the dwectors concerned where necessary and
appropnate

All necessary information is supplied to the directors on a timely basis to enable them to discharge their dulles effectively,
and all directors have access to independent professional advice, at the company's expense, as and when required

The Chief Executive Officer Is available to mest with Institutional shareholders to discuss any i1ssues and concerns
regarding the Group’s governance The non-executive directors can also attend meetings with major sharehoiders 1f
requested

The participation of both privale and institulional investors at the Annual General Meeting 1s welcomed by the board
Internal controls

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Company’s and the Group's systems of internal cantrol, which are
designed to safeguard the assets of the Group and ensure the rehability of financial information for both internal use and
externat publication Overall control 1s ensured by a regular detalled reparing system covering both techmical progress of
a project and the state of the group’s financial affairs The board has put in place procedures for identifying, evaluating
and managing any significant nsks that face the group

Any system of internal control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that mratenal financial
irregulanties will be detected or that the nsk of failure to achieve business cbjectives 1s eliminaled The directors, having
reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management,
consider that the system of internal conlrol operated effectvely throughout the financtal year and up to the dale the
financial statements were signed

Commilttees

Each of the following commuttees has its own terms of reference

Audit Commities

The Audit Commitiee compnises the non-executive directors s terms of reference indicate af least two regular meetings
per year The audit commiltee has met twice dunng the year The Audit Committee’s pnmary responsibilities are to review

the effectiveness of the company's systems of Internal conirol, to review with the externa! auditors the nature and scope of
their audit and the results of the audi, and to evaiuale and sefect external auditors
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Remunerafion Commitlee

The Remuneration Commiltee comprises the non-executive directors It plans to meet at least iwice 1in each year The
Remuneration Committee has met once dunng the year

The Company's policy is to remunerate senior executives fairly in such a manner as to facilitate the recrutment, retention
and motwation of staff The Remuneration Commiltae agreas with the board a framework for the remuneration of the
chairman, the executive directors and the sentor management of lhe company The principat objective of the Commitiea
15 to ensure lhat members of the executive management of the Company are provided incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and responsible manner, rewarded for therr indiwidual contributions to the success of the
Company Non-executive fees are considered and agreed by the board as a whole
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc

We have audited the financial statements of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc for the year ended 31 August 2011 which
comprise the Conschdated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated and Company Statement of Financal
Poslition, Consolidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated and Company Stalement of Cash
Flows and lhe related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applted in thelr preparation i1s applicable faw
and Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopled by the European Union and, as regards the parent
company financial statlements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Comparues Act 2006

Respective rasponsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully n the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 35, the directors are responstble for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfled that they give a true and faw view

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's {APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors This reporl Is made solely to the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapler 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company's members those malters we are required to state to them in an audilor's report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitled by law, we do nol accep! or assume responsibility {0 anyone other than the
company and the company's members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Scape of the audit of the financial statements
A descnption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's web-site at
www fre org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinton on the financial statements

In our opinion

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affarrs as at
31 August 2011 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended,

» the group financral statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union,

» the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
Eurgpean Union and as applied m accordance with the provistons of the Companies Act 2006, and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the informabion given In the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared i1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companles Act 2006 requires us to report to you

if, In our opinton

e adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches nol visited by us, or

+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we haye nof received all the imformation and explanations we require for our audit

QoA

Richard Meicalfe (Serior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Tower Bridge House

St Katharne's Way

London E1W 1DD

Date 12 December 2011
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Restated
Notes 2011 2010
£000 £000
Turnover 4 47,984 40,354
Cosl of sales 5 (44,718) (29,248)
Gross profit 3,248 11,106
Operating expenses
Administrative expenses (2,301) (3,229)
Forelgn exchange gams 1,592 2,182
Depreciation and amortisation expanse {6.074) (5,187)
Underlying operating {loss) / profit (3,637) 4,872
Invantory obsolescence write back / (provision) 16 179 {381)
Rehabihtation charge - 17
Provision for doubtful debt write back 17 242 -
Share based paymenis expense 18(¢c) (808) (665)
Qperating (loss) / profit & (3,924) 3,809
Interest recelvable and other income 8 98 3¢
Interest payable and similar charges 8 {(107) {163)
Net {loss) / profit before taxation {3,933) 3,685
Taxation 9 1,618 838
{Loss) ! profit for the yoar (2,315) 4,623
Attributable to
Owners of the Parent {2,315) 4523
Non Controlling interest - -
{2,315) 4,523
Other comprehensive Income and (expenscs)
Currency translafion differences 178 {332)
Total comprehensive {loss) / income for the year (2,137} 4,191
Attributable to
Owners of the Parent (2.137) 4,191
Non Centrolling interest -
{Loss) ! earnings per share
Pence Pence
Bastc 1 (2 76) 632
Diluted 11 {2 76) 624

All activities relate to continuing operations

The aotes on pages 46 to 86 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Company Registration No 5059077

Reslated
Notes 2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 34,057 33,724
Property, plant and equipment 13(a) 23,533 20,723
Mine properties and development 13(b) 6,955 4,387
Total non-current assets 64,645 58,834
Current assets
lnventorles 16 8,034 8,030
Trade and other receivables 17 7,794 5,151
Cash and cash equivalents 18 6,892 12,849
Total current assets 22,720 24,030
Total Assets 87,265 82,664
Current liabllities
Trade and other payables 20 4,229 4,308
Provisions 21 664 528
Borrowings 22 5 45
Vatukoula Social Assislance Trust Fund 23 1,558 1,011
Total current liabilities 8,458 65,892
Non-current Liabllities
Provisions 21 4 141 4,220
Convertible foan 24 N 332
Borrowings 22 - 5
Vatukoula Social Asslstance Trust Fund 23 13 508
Deferred tax habilty 30 7,776 9,394
Total non-currant liabllitles 12,274 14,457
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 18 4378 4,031
Share premium account 19 76,709 69,699
Merger reserve 2,167 2167
Foreign exchange reserve 582 404
Other reserves 2,358 1,582
Accumulated [osges (17,656) (15,378)
Total shareholders' equity 68,638 62,615
Total ltabilities and shareholders’ squity 87,285 82,864

Approved b/yth‘é'Board and authonsed for Issue on 12 December 2011and signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by

)/
d
. £ T T—

(L(, Morzaria

Director
12 December 2011

The notes on pages 46 Lo 86 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes 2011 2010
£'000 £000

Asgets
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary companies 15 46,729 37,679
Proparty, plant and equipmant 13(a) 250 250
Available for sate Invastments 14 - .
Total non-current assets 46,979 37,929
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 17 17,032 14,748
Cash and cash squivalants 18 4,774 10,452
Total current assets 21,805 25,200
Total Assels 68,785 63,129
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 20 197 318
Non-current Liabitities
Convertible [oan 24 KR a3z
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 19 4,378 4,031
Share premlum account 19 76,709 69,699
Other reserves 2,377 1,582
Accumulaled losses {15,217) (12 843)
Total shareholders' equity 68,247 62,479
Total liahllities and shareholders' equity 68,785 63,129

Approved by 4 Board and authonsed for issus an 12 December 201 1and signead on behalf of the Board of Direclors by

(b@ Morzaria

Diractor
412 December 2011

The notes on pages 46 to 86 form an integral part of these financial stalements
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Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc

Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

As at 31 August 2011

Equity

Share component

Ordinary based of

share Share paymsnt convertible  Accumulated

capital premium reserve loan note losses Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £:000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 2010 4,031 69,698 1,538 63 (12,843) 62,478
Loss for the year - - - - (2,392) {2,392)
Total comprehensive income - - - - (2,392) (2,392)
Issue of shares 344 7,372 - - 7,716
Cost of share Issue - {385) - - - {385)
Share opton expired - - (18) - 18 -
Convertible loan 3 23 - (8) 19 37
Share based payments - - 792 - - 792
Balance at 31 August 2011 4,378 76,709 2,313 45 {15,198) $8,247

Equity

Share componsant

Ordinary based of

share Share payment convertible  Accumulated

capital premium reserve loan note losges Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E'000 £000
Balance at 1 September 2009 2,688 53,076 1,154 83 {10,520} 48,479
Loss for the year - - - - {2,603} {2.603)
Total comprehensive income - - - - {13,123} {13,123}
Issue of shares 1,324 17,286 - - - 18,610
Cosl of share isste - (872) - - (872}
Share option expired - . (280) - 280 -
Convartible loan 21 209 - (30) 200
Share based payments - - 865 - - 665
Balance at 31 Aug 2010 4,031 69,699 1,539 63 {12,843) 62,479

Share premium The share proemium reserve represents the consideration that has been receved in excess of the
nominal value of shares on i1ssue of new ordinary share capitat

Share based payment reserve' The share-based payment reserve represenis cumulative amounts charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income 1n respect of share based payment arrangements, where Il has not yet been seltled

by means of an award of shares

Equity component of convertible loan note The equity component of the convertible loan nofes represents the

remaimng equity compeonen! of convertible notes which has not yet been corverted i shares

Accumulated losses The accumulated losses represent profits and losses retained in previous and current penod

The notes on pages 46 lo 86 form an integral part of these financlal statements
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Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 August 2011

Restated
Notes 2011 2010
£'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating (loss)} 7 profit for the period 8 (3,924} 3,809

Adyustments for

Share based payments 19 808 665
Depreciation and amortisation 6,074 5187
Loss on disposal of property plani equipment 5 4
(Reversal of} / allowance for inventory cbsolescence (179 381
Foreign exchange gains {1,202) (1,124)
Prowision for bad debts {242) -
Discount on rehabilitation trust deed - -
Prowision for mine rehabilitation - -
Maovements in Employment Prowisions 235 (367)
Net operating income hefora changes [n working capital 1,575 8,555
Increase in inventories 16 {1,577) (1,373
Increase In recelvables 17 {2,078) {3.259)
{Decrease) / Increase in accounts payable 20 (231) 196
Net cash (used) / generated In operating activities (2,312) 4,119

Cash fiows from investing activitles
Payments for intangible assets 12 (2,667) (35)
Purchase of propeity plant and equipment 13(a) {6,532) {6,206}
Paymaents for mine properttes and development 13(b) (1,898) (3,852}
Intarest receved 8 94 38
Net cash used in investing activities (11,003) (10,054)
Cash flows before financing {13,315) (5,935)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuanca of shares i9 7,718 18,610
Cosls of issue of shares {385 (872)
Interest paid (18) (179)
{Repayment)/proceads from borrowings 23 {45) 96
Net cash provided by financing activities 7,268 17,665
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash squivalents (6,04T7) 11,720
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of the year 18 12,849 1,088
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash equlvalents 80 43
Cash and cash equivatents at the end of the year 18 6,892 12,849

Prior year numbers have been rastated lo present more accurately the aflocations of the impact of forelgn exchange on cash flows  Net
operaling sncome before changes in working capital increased from £7,877,000 to £8,555,000, net cash generated in operating actvities
Increased from £3,708,000 to £4,119,000, net cash used i investing activities increased fram £9,886,000 to £10,054,000, and net cash
provided by financing activities increased from £17,608,000 to £17,655,000 The rectassifications had ne Impact on the Group’s cash and

cash equivalents as at 31 August 2009 or 31 August 2010

The notes on pages 46 ta 86 form an integral par of these financial statements
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Vatukouta Gold Mines Plc
Company Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 August 2011

Notes 2011 2010
£'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating loss for the year 6 (2,408) (2.539)

Adjustments for

Share based payments expense 19 128 665
Net operating Income betare changes in working capital (2,280) (1,874)
Increase in recelvables 17 (10,670} (5,903)
{Dacrease) / increase [n accounts payable 20 (121} 86
Net cash used In operating actlvities (13.071}) {7,691}

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 8 62 36
Net cash used In investing aclivities 62 36
Cash flows before financing {13,009) {7,655)

Cash flows from financing activities
Praoceads from 1ssuance of shares 19 7,716 18,608
Costs of issue of shares (385) (872)
Interest paxd - (68)
Net cash provided by financlng activitles 7,331 17,669
Not (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents {6,678) 10,014
Cash and cash equivalents at hegnning of the year 18 10,452 438
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 18 4,774 10,452

The notes on pages 46 to 85 form an integra! part of these financial statements
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Vatukoula Gold Mines Ple
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2011

k| General information

Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc 1s registered in England and Wales under number 5059077 The Company s governed by its
articles of association and the principal statute governing the Company 15 the Companies Act 2006 The Company's
registered office 1s sifuated at 5th floor, Carmelite, Victona Embankment, Blackfnars, London, EC4Y OLS The company Is
hsted an Lhe AIM market of the London Stock Exchange

The nature of the Group's and Company’s operations and principal activities are sel cut in the Directors’ Report on page
31

2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Vatukoula Gold Mines Ple and all s subsidianes (the 'Group’) have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted for use by the European
Umon

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis The consclidated financial
statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (GBP) and all values are rounded to Lhe nearest thousand {£'000) except
when otherwise indicated

The pnncipal accounting policies adapted by the Group and Company in the preparation of the financial slatements are
set out below

The Board has reviewed the accounling polictes set cul In the financial statements and considers them to be most
appropnate to the Group's business

These financial statements are presented in stering  Group revenues are in US dollars Given thal the Fijian dollar 1s not
wadely used as a reporting currency and that lhe parent company 1s listed in the United Kingdom it is deemed appropnate
for the presentation currency of the Group to be in sterhng

Statement of Complianice with IFRS

The Group's and Company's financial slatements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS and IFRIC interprelations) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union

New accounting standards

The group and company adopled IFRS 2(Amended} Group Settied Share-based Payments Share options issued by the
company to employees of a subsidlary company are expensed In the subsidary, and not the holding company There
were no impacts in the adoption of this standard as pnor to the current year all share options were only 1ssued 1o
employees of the company and not in any subsidianes

There was no material effect of other IFRS’s, 1AS's and IFRIC's that came info effect in the year, as these new or
amended standards, amendments and interpretations s did nol apply to operations of the Group and the Company

The group and the company have not applied the following standard, amendments and interpretations that are applicable
and have been issued, but are not yet effective

New/Revised International Financlal Issued Effective Date
Reporting Standards

Financial Instruments
IFRS 7 Disclosures October 2010 Annual periods beginming on or after 1 July 2011
—~Amendments enhancing
disclosures about transfers
of financial assels

IFRS 9 Financial Instrumenis Origimal 1ssue Annual penods beginmng on or after 1 January
— Classification and November 2009 2013
Measuremenis
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Vatukoula Gold Mines Pl¢
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2011

2 Basis of preparation (continued)
New/Revised International Financial Issued Effective Date
Reporting Standards
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Onginal 1ssue Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Statements May 2011 2013
IFRS 11 Joint arrangements Cniginal 1ssue Annual periods beginning an or after 1 January
May 2011 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in Criglnal issue Annuat periods beginning on or afler 1 January
other Entihes May 2011 2013
IFRS 13 Farr Value measurement Ornginal 1ssue Annual penods beginning on or after 1 January
May 2011 2012
I1AS 1 Presentation of Financial June 2011 Annual penods beginring on or after 1 July 2012
Statements
- Amendments to revise
the way other
comprehensive Income IS
presented
1AS 12 Income Taxes December 2010 | Annual penods beginning on or after 1 January
- Limited scope 2012
amendment (recovery of
underlying assets)
1AS 19 Employee benefils Amended June Annual penads beginning on or after 1 January
~ Amended standards 2011 2013
resulting from the post-
Employee benefits and
terminalion benefits
projecls
IAS 29 Related Party Disclosure November 2009 Annual penods beginning on or after 1 January
- Revised definition of 201
related parties
1AS 27 Consolidated and May 2011 Annual penods beginning on or after 1 January

Separate Financial
Statemenls

— Reissued as 1AS 27
Separate Financial
Statements (as amended
n 2011)

2013
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Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2011

2 Basis of preparation {(continued)
New/Revised International Financial lssued Effective Date
Reporting Standards
IAS 28 Investments in Associates May 2011
— Reissued as |AS28 Annual penods heginmng on or after 1 January
Investments in Associates and 2013
Joint Ventures (as amended
n 2011)
November 2009
IFRIC 14 | IAS 19— The imit on a Amendments with | Annual penods beginning on or after 1 January
defined Benefit Asset, respect to 2011
Minimum Funding voluntary prepaid
Requirements and Lher contnbulions
interaction
Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
IFRIC20 Stripping costs In the 2013
production phase of a surface
mine

The directors expect that the adoption of the above pronouncements will have no matenal impact to the financtal
stataments in the period of iImtial applications

The directors do not consider the adoption of the amendments from May 2011 Annual Improvements project will result n a
matenal impact on the financial information of the group and the company These amendments too IFRS 7, IAS 1 and IAS
34 are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

3 Summary of significant accounting policles
{a) Basls of consohdation

The consolidated financial informalion incorporates the financial statements of the Company and its subsidianes (the
“Group”} Control 1s achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee
entity so as to obfain benefits from its activilies

With the exception of foreign exchange vanances on inter-company finance balances, nter-company transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated, unrealsed losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction providas svidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to bring the accounting pohcies used
n Iine with those used by the Group

{b} Golng concern

The Group's busmess activities, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are
set outl in the Business Review sectlon of this report The financial position of the Group, its cash flows, hquidity posifion
and borrowing faciibes are described in lhe financial review In addition note 25 fo the financial statements include the
Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its financial nsk management objectives and details of
its financial instruments and it its exposure to credit and liquidity risk

In assessing the Groups going concern the Directors have taken into account the above faclors, including the financial
position of the Group and in parbcular its cash position, the current gold price and market expectation for the same over
the medium term, and the Groups capital expendilure and financing plans

The Group’s forecasls and projections, taking accounl of reasonable possible changes in gold price, mining costs and the
concentration of the gold in the ore delivered 1o the mill, show that the Group should be able to operate using its current
cash posiion The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequale resources to continue in
operational exislence for the foreseeable future Thus lhey continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparng the annual financial stalements
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Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2011

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)  Business combinatlons

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiarias by the Group The cost of the
acqulsition 13 measured at the aggregate of the fair values, al the date of exchange, of the assels given, hiablilies incusred
or assumed and equity instruments 1ssued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree  Acguisiion costs
incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses The acquiree’s identifiable assels, habilities and
contingent labilities that meet the conditions for recogniion under IFRS 3 "Business Combinalions” are recognised at therr
falr value at the acquisition date, except for non-current assels (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 *Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”, which are recognised and
measured at farr value less costs to sell

Where there 1s a difference between the Group's interest in the net faw value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabillties
and contingent habilities and the cost of the business combination, any excess cost Is recognised in the statement of
financial posilion as goodwill and any excess net farr value 1s recogmsed immediately in the profit or loss as negative
goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary The non-controling interest in the acquiree is initially measured at the non-conirolling
interesl proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabihlies and contingent labitties recognised

(d) Sigmificant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, apart from
those involving estimations and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recogmsed in the
consalidated financial siatements

1 Income taxes (see note 9)

The Group is subject to Income taxes in the Uniled Kingdom, Fi and Brazil Significant Judgement Is required in
determining the worldwide prowision for income taxes There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination 15 uncertain during the ordinary course of business Where the final tax outcomea of these
matters 1s different from the amounts that were imitially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made

2 Mineral Resources and Reserves

Quantification of mineral resources requires & judgement on the reasonable prospects far eventual economic extraction
Quantification of ore reserves requires a judgement on whether mineral resources are economically mineable These
judgements are based on the assessment of mining, metallurgical, economic, markefing, legal, environmental, social and
governmental factors involved, in accordance with the Australasian Code for Reporting Exploration Results, Mineral
Resourcas and Ore Reserves These faclors are a source of uncertainty and changes could result in an increase or
decrease in mineral resources and ore reserves This would tn tumn affect certain amounts in the financial statements such
as amortisation, renabilitalion provisions which are calculated on a projected hfe of mine figures

3 Provisions and Contingent Liabiliies (notes 21 & 28)

Judgements are made as lo whether a past event has led to a habiity that should be recogmised in the financial
statements or disclosed as a contingent habiity Quantifying any such hability often involves judgements and estimations
These judgements are based on a number of factors including tha nature of the claim or dispute, the legal process and
potential amount payable, legal advice received, previous experience and the probability of a loss bemng realised Several
of these factors are a source of estimation uncertainty

4 Inventory Valuations
Valuations of gold stockpites, gold in clreunt and gold within the fine ore bin requires estimations of the amount contained
i, and the recovery rales from, the various work in progress gold clrcuits These estimations are based on analysis of

samples and prior experience A judgement Is also apphied when the gold in circuit will be recovered and whal gold price
should be applied in calculating the net realisable value, these are both sources of uncertainty
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Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Notes to the Financial Statemants
For the year ended 31 August 2011

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

{d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the application of eslimates and assumptions on future events, which
affacts assets and Liabilites at the reporting date and income and expenditure for the penod The astimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis  Rewvisions to accounting estimates are recogmised in the penod in which
the estimate 18 revised If the revision affects only that period, or in the penod of the revision and future peniods If the
revision affacts both current and future penods

The key estimales and assumptions that have a significant nsk of causing a malenal adjustment lo the carrying amounts
of certain assels and habiliies within the next annual reporting period are

4] Share-based payment transactons (see note 19)

The Group measures the cost of equity-settied transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity
mstruments al the date at which they are granted The fair value 1s determined using the Black-Scheles model The Black-
Scholes mede! 1s particularly sensilive to volahity calculation Therefore any change in the methodology of the calculation
of volatility will impact the amount expensed as share based payments on the stalement of comprehensive income

The value expensed on the statement of comprehensive income 1s £808,000 (2010 £655,000)
6 Intangible assets {see note 12)

Amortisation

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) are amorhised over lherr useful fives  Useful lives are based on management's
estimates of the period that the assets will generate revenue, which are penodically reviewed for continued
appropnateness Due to the long Iives of assets, changes to the estmates used can result in significant varntances in the
carrylng value

The Group assesses the impairment of intangible assets subject to amortisation or depreciation whenever avents or
changes in circumstances indicate thal the carrying value may not be recoverable Factors considered mmportant that
could tigger an imparment review include the following

- significant underperformance relative to hisloncal or projected fulure operating results,
- significant changes in the manner of ihe use of the acquired assets or the strategy for the overall business, and
- significant negative industry or economic trends

The complexily of the estimabion process and i1ssues related to the assumptions, nisks and uncerlainties inherent in the
apphication of the Group’s accounting eshimates mn relation to intangible assets affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements, especially the estimales of the expected useful aconamic lives and the carrying values of those assets If
business conditions were different, or if different assumptions were used in the application of this and cther accounting
eslimates, His hkely that materially different amounts could be reported in the Group’s financial statements In particular it
would affect, the value of the infangible asset and rehabllitation provisions

The carrying value at lhe reporuing date of the intangible assets 1s £34,057,000 (2010 33,724,000}

7 Mine Rehabilitation Provisions

Such provisions require a judgement on likely future obligations, based on assessment of technlcal, legal and economic
factors The ultimate cosl of environmental remedialion 1s uncertain and cost estimates can vary n response 1o many
factors, including changes in the relevant Jegal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techmques and changes
to the hfe of mine Changes to any of these cosis will affect amounts in the financial stafement such, the mine asset and
the proviston for mine rehabilitation

The carrying value at the reporting date of the mine rehabrlitalion prowision 1s £4,092,000 (2010 4,220,000)
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Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2011

3 Summary of significant accounting pollcies {continued)
{d)  Signdicant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions {continued)
8 Allowance for doubtful debls (see note 17}

Each recewvable balance 1s assessed to detarmine recoverability Prowvisions are made for those debtors where evidence
indicates that recoverability 1s doubifuf  Amounts are written off when they are deemed frrecoverable Any changes to
estimates made in relation to debtors recoverabiity may result wm matenally different amounts being reported by the
Group's financial statemenis in paricutar any changes will affect lrade and other receivable as well as the stalement of
comprehensive income

The carrying value at the reporiing dale of the provision for doubtful debts i1s £2,768,000 (2010 3,011,000)
(e}  Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists that all of the following cnteria are met

+  the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the product have been transferred to the buyer,

» pneither continuing managernal involvemant to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effectwe control
over the goods sold has been retained,
the amount of revenue can be measured rehably,

s s probable that the economic benefils associated with the sale will flow to the Group, and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the sale can be measured reliably

Bullion sales

The transfer of nsks and rewards for the sale of the gold bullion 1s assessed as 1aking place when the physical possession
15 passed to the customer upon coliection of the gold builon from the mining premises  The customer dees not have any
right of return subsequent lo the physical transfer, and accordingly at this point revenue is recogrised

Finance revenue

Interest revenue 1s recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest rate method This is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the Interest iIncome over the relevant penod using the effective
interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts Ihrough the expecled Wfe of the
financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset

{n Turnover and Segmental Analysls

The reportable segments identified make up all of the Group's external revenue, which 1s derived pnmarlly from the sale of
gold The reporiable segments are an aggregation of the operating segmenis wilhin the Group as prescnbed by IFRS 8
The reporfable segments are based on the Group's management structures and the consaquent reporting to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker, the Board of Directors Our seclor results are attributable fo unallocaled head office corporate
costs, gold production & exploration costs, and olher costs These reportable segments alse correspond to geographical
locattons such that each reportable segment 1s In a separate geographic location, 1 € , unatinbuted head office cosls ~ UK,
gold rmmng — Fip, other achwties — Brazil

Income and expenses included in profit or loss for the year are allocated directly or indireclty to the reportable segments
Expenses allocated as either direclly or indirectly aftributable comprise cost of sales, gold duty and administrative
expenses

Non-current segment assels comprise the non-current assets used directly for segment operations, including intangible
assels, preparty, plant and equipment and mine properties and development

Current segment assets comprise the current assets used directly for segment operations, mcluding Inventones, trade
recelvables, other recevables and pre-paymenis

Inter-company balances comprise transachions between operating segments making up the reportable segments These
balances are eliminated to arnve at the figures in the consolidated accounts
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3. Summary of significant accounting policles (continued)

{9} The Company's investments in subsidiaries

In Ils separate financial statemenls the Company recognises its investments in subsidianes at cost, less any imparment
for permanent diminution in value Differences ansing from changes in fair values of Intercompany loans recelvable are
trealed as an increase in the investment in the subsidiary

(b}  Forelgn currency

The consolidaled financial statements are presented in Pounds Stering ("£"), which 1s lhe parent company’s funchional
currency and the Group's presentatton currency Each entity in the Group determines it own functional currency and tems
inciuded in the financial statements of each enhity are measured using that functional currency The assets and habilities
of these subsitharies are translated into the presentation currency of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc at the rate of exchange
ruling at the reporting date and their Statements of Comprehensive Income are translated at the average exchange rate
for the year The exchange differences arising on the transtation are taken directly to a separate componant of eqguity

All other differences ansing on translation are included in the profit or loss excepl for exchange differences ansing on non-
monetary assets and liabilihas where the changes in farr values are recognised directly In equity

Goodwill and far value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foretgn entity are treated as assets and labilities of the
forelgn entity and translated at the closing rate

Exchange differences recognised In profit or loss of Group enlities' separate financial statements on the translation of
long-term monetary tlems forming part of the Group's net nvestment in the overseas operation concerned are reclassified
to the foreign exchange reserve  On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulalive exchange differences recognised n
the foretgn exchange reserve relaling to that operation up to the date of disposal are transferred fo the Statements of
Comprahensive Income as part of the profit or loss

n Goodwill on acquisition

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of a subsidiary or jomntly controlled entity represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, rabilihes and contingent habilities of the
subsidiary ar jomnily controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition  Goodwill 1s inttially recognised as an asset at
cost and 1s subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expected fo
benefil from synergies of the combination Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocaled are tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there Is an indication that the unit may be mmpaired If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit 1s less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset \n the unit  An imparrment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent perods

{ Inventories

Ore stock, consisting of stocks on which further processing 1s required to convert them to trading stocks, 15 valued at the
tower of cost and net realisable value Cost 15 calculated using a weighted average cost model, where inventories are
valued al the weighted average cost of the closing inventory Net realisable value 1s eslimated selling pnce less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Other inventories include

® Stores, comprising plant spares and consumable stores, are valued on the basis of welghted average cost after
prowiding for obsolescence

() Work n progress is valued on the basis of first in first out and includes direct costs, depreciation and amartisation

(W)  Insurance spares are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Insurance spares are cnitical spare parts
to equipment, that although may not be required on a regular basis are kept In inventory because, should a
particular plece of equipment fail ot would matenally adversely atfect production
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kN Summary of significant accounting pollicies (continued)
)} Inventorles {continuad}
Gald in circutt

Gold m cirewit 1s valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost compnses direct material, labour and
transportalion expenditure Incurred in getiing inventones to therr existing focation and condiion, together with an
appropriate portion of fixed and vanable overhead expendilure based on welghted average costs incurred during the
penod in which such inventonies were produced Net reasbsable value 15 the amount anticipated fo be realised from the
sale of inventory in the normal course of business less any anticipated costs to be incurred prior to iis sale

(k) Intangible assets

Acquired imtangible assels, which consist of mining nghls and intangible computer software, are valued at cost less
accumulated amoriisation Amorlisation 1s catculated using the units of produchon method which s calculated over the fife
span of the mine  As at 31 August 2011, the estimated remaimng life span of the mine is 8 years This is the entire penod
over which currently the mine is being amortised

The Group apphes the full cost methed of accouniing for exploration and evaluatron costs, having regard to the
requirements of IFRS 6 ‘Exploration for and Evalualion of Mineral Resources’ All cosls assomaled with mining
development and investment are capitalised on a project by project basis pending determination of the feasibility of the
project Such expenditure comprises appropriate technical and administralive expenses but not general overheads

Such exploration and evaluation costs are capitalised provided that the Group's nghls to fenure are current and one of the
following condilions 1s met

] such costs are expacted to be recouped through successful development and explotation of the area of interest or
alternatively by ils sale, or

(n)  the activilies have not reached a slage which permits a reasonable assessment of whether or not economically
recoverable resources exist, or

{m) active and significant operations in relation to the area are continuing

When an area of interest 15 abandoned or the directors decide that it 15 not commercial, any exploration and evaluation
costs previously capitahsed in respect of that area are wrilten off to profit or loss

Amortisation does not take place unbl production comniences in these areas  Once praduction commences, amorbisation
1s calculated on the unit of production method, over Iha remaining hfe of the mine

Impairment assessments are carried out regularly by the direclors Exploration and evaluation assels are assessed for
impairment when facts and crcumstances suggest thal the carrying amount may exceed its recoverable amount Such
indicators mclude the point at which a determinalion 1s made as 1o whether or not commercial reserves gxist

The recoverability of capitalised mining costs and mining interests 1s dependent upon the discovery of economically
recoverable reserves, the abiity of the Company to obtain necessary financing to complete the development of reserves
and future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of recoverabla reserves

The assels’ residual value and useful lives are rewiewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date  An asset's
carrying value 1s wntten down immediately to its recoverable value if the asset's carrying amount 1s greater than its listed
recoverable amounl

{)] Tangiblo assets

(1) Properly, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated al cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated imparment losses

Depreciation 1s provided on all langible assets to write down Lhe cost less estimated residual value of each asset over its
useful economic life on a units of proeduction method or straight line basis The estimated useful lives are as folfows

Freehold land Not depreciated
Plant and machinery Qver 3 - 10 years
Mine Asset Life of mine basis
Molor vehicles Over 3 years
Fixtures, filings and equipment Over 4 years
Work (n progress Nat dapreciated
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(1) Tangible assets (continued)
The depreciation charge for each penod is recogrnised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the Work in Progress account The cost comprises its purchase
price and any costs directly attnbutable to banging it mto working conditton for its intended use, at which polnt it 1s
fransferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences

Subsequent expenditure relating to an itam of property, plant and equipment Is capitalised when it 1s probable that fulure
economic henefits from the use of the asset will be increased  All other subsequent expendidure rs recogmised as an
expense In the period in which # Is incurred

Repairs and maintenance which neither materially add to the value of assets nor appreciably prolong their useful ives are
charged against income

The gain or loss ansing from the de-recognition of any items of property, plant and equipment 1s included n the profit or
loss when the item is de-recogrused The gain or loss ansing from the de-recognibion of an item of property, plant and
equipment I1s determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, If any, and the carrying amount of the tem
The carrying values of properly, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

() Mine properttes and development ("MPD")

This represents the accumulated exploration, evaluation, development and acquisition expendilure in relation to areas of
interest in which economically recoverable reserves exist

Development costs that can be capitalised fall into the following categories

¢ |mtial Capital Development
This includes, but s not restricted to the following

Shaft sinking

Station (plant) development & underground workshops
Pump station and dams

Ore and wasle pass systems

o0 QC

» Pnmary Capital Development
This 1s the development carited out on each level in the exploration and explotation of a mining area or
orebody It includes, but s not restricted to the following

o Cross cuts, hautages and drives to the orebody
o Initial rises on the orebody to effect the first holdings to faciltate production
o Main airways

+ Secondary Capital Development
This 15 the development carmed out within an area in which the pnimary development has been
compleled and which Is critical to the continued operation of the mine or mining area [f includes, bul is
nol restricted to the following

o) Alrways, crosscuts and drives
o] Pump stattions

The capilalised value of mine properties is depreciated on a Iife of mine basis The life of mine has been calculaled on a
units of preduction method based on sconomically recoverable reserves and rasources The depreciation for the penod 1s
calculated using the following

Recovered gold ounces during the penod X Net book value to date plus costs
Economically recoverable reserves and resources alt the capitalised during the period
start of the penod

The net carrying value of a mme assets is reviewed regularly and, to the exent to which this amount exceeds its
racoverable amount (based on the tugher of estimated future net cash flows and the mine's asset's current realisable
value) that excess 1s fully provided aganst In the financial year in which thus is determined
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{m) Provislon for mine rehabilitation

A provision for rehabilitation 1s imbizlly recognised at the present value of expected future cash flows when there exists a
constructive obligation for the entily to underiake rehabiltation at the mine site  The ingrease in the provision for
rehabilitation relating to the unwinding of the discount on the prowision to the date of seltiement of the provision and the
deprecaton of the rehabllilahon asset are recorded within profit or loss

{n}  Impairment of Intangible and tanglble assets excluding goodwill

The Group assesses at each reporling date whether there is an indication thal an asset may be impaired If any such
indication exists, or whan annual impairment testing for an assst 1s required, the Group makes an estimate of the assef's
recoverable amount An assel’s recoverable amount 1s the higher of the asset's or cash-generaling unit's fair value less
costs to sell and ifs value in use and i1s determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assels or groups of assels and the asset's value i use cannol be
estimated to be close 1o its fair value  In such cases the assat is tested for imparment as part of the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs When the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generaiing unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset or cash-ganserating unit 1s considered impaired and 1s written down to Ils recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the nsk speclfic to the asset Impairment
losses of continuing operations are recogrised in those expense categonas consistent with the function of the impaired
assel unlass (he assel 1s carned at a revalued amount (in which case the impairment is trested as a revaluation decrease)
An assessment ts made at each reporting date as to whether there 15 any indication that previously recogrised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased If such indication exists, the recoverable amount 15 estimated, a
previtously recognised impairment loss 15 reversed only if there has been a change 1n the estimales used lo determme the
asset's racoverable amount since the fasl impairment loss was recognised If that 1s the case the carrying amount of the
asset 1s increased 10 1ls recoverable amount That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset In prior years  Such reversal
1s recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is carned at a revalued amount, 1n which case the reversal 15 ireated as a
revaluation increase After such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future penods fo allocate the assel's
revised carrying amount, 1ess any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful Life

(o) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilibes are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the mstruments and on a lrade date basis A financiaf asset 1s derecognised when the Group's contraciual nghis to fulure
cash flows from the financial asset expire or when the Group transfers the contractual nghts to fulure cash flows to a third
parly A financial liabihty is derecognised only when the liabllity is extinguished

a Trade and other receivables and other assels

Trade and other receivables and other assets are measured at mitial recegnition at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, Appropnate allowances for estimated wrecoverable
amounts are recagnised in the statement of comprehensive income when there Is objective evidence that the assel 15
imparred

b Cash and cash eguivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statement of financlal pesition and consohdated stalement of cash flows, the Group
considers all highly hquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and have a matunty of
three monihs of less when acquired to be cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and m
hand, and short ierm deposils with an cnginal matunty of three months or less, all of which are available for use by lhe
Group unless otherwise stated

¢ Investments
Investments included as financial assets are valued al farr value and ars held as available for sale  When available for

sale assets are considered to be impawed, cumulalive gains or losses previously recognised in equity are reclassified to
the profit or loss in the perod
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{0) Financial Instruments {continued)
d Financial habibities and equity

Financial flabiittes and equity instruments are classified according fo the subslance of the contractual arrangements
entered info  An equily instrument 18 any coniracl that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its habiiies The Group's financial habilities wnclude trade and other payables, bank loans, other
borrowings, convertible loans and obligaiions under finance leases Al financial liabilifes, are recognised mitiatly at therr
farr value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable o the acquisiion or 1ssue of the financial hatihty and
subsequently measured at amorhised cost, using the effective interesl method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost

e OCther financial llabilities

Other financial habibities, including horrowings, are intially measured at far value, net of transaction costs  Other financial
Habiliies are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

f Bank horrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct 1ssue costs Finance
charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an
accruals basis to the Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective interest method and are added to the
carrying amount of the nstrument to the extent that they are not settied in the pernod in which they anse

g9 Trade payables, provisions and other payables

Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at cost Other payables which are interest-beanng are measured
at farr value Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resull of a past
event, it1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estmate of
the amount can be made Provisions are measured at fair value Provision has been made in the financiai statements for
benefits accruing in respect of sick leave, annual leave, and long service leave

h Compound Financial Instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the group compnse convertible loan notes that can be converled to share
capital at the oplion of the holder, and the number of shares lo be issued does not vary with changes n their fair value

The habilify compenent of a compound financial instrument 1s recognised itially al the fair value of a similar iability that
does not have an equity conversion option The equity component 1s recogmised imtially at the difference between the fair
value of the compound financial insttument as a whole and the farr value of the liabiity component Any directly
atinbutabie transactron costs are allocated te the lrability and equity components i proportion to their inthal carrying
amounts

Subsequent to initial recogmtion, the hability component of a {financial instrument 1s measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method The squity component of 2 compound financial instrurment 15 not re-measured subsequent to
initial recognilion except on conversion or expiry

{p} Financing costs and interest income

Financing costs comprise interast payable on borrowings and finance lease payments and interest income which 1s
calculated using the effective interesl rate method

{q) Impairment of financlal assets

Al each reporting dale, the Group assesses whether there Is objective evidence that financial assets, other than those at
far value through profit or loss, are impared The impairment loss of financial assets carrred at amortised cost i1s
measured as the difference belween the assets' carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset's onginal effective inlerest rate

{n Share Capital
Ordinary shares are recorded at nominal value and proceeds received i excess of nominal value of shares 1ssued, if any,
are accounted for as share premium  Both ordinary shares and share premium are classified as equity Costs incurred

direclly to the issue of shares are accounted for as a deduction from share premium, cltherwise they are charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income
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(s} Taxation

Tax on profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax Tax is recognised n the Statement of
Comprehensive Income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case 1if 1s
recognised in equity

Current tax 15 the expecled tax payable on the taxable income for the penod, using tax rates enacted or substanlively
enacled at the balance sheel date, and any adjusiment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred fax 1s provided on temporary differences between lhe carrying amount of assets and labilties for financial
reporiing purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes  The following temporary differences are not provided for

the inihal recogniion of assets or habiities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit olher than in a businass
combination, and differences relating to investments tn subsidiares to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the
foresesable fulure The amount of daferred 1ax provided is based on the expected mannet of reahisation or setiement of
the carrying amount of assets and habilities, using tax rales enacted or substanlively enacted at the reporting date

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised

{t} Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for granting share options, for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to ehgible employees of the Group The cost of share options granted is measured by reference to the farr value
at the date at which they are granted

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in the assumptions about the number of options expected to
vest The total expense 1s recogmsed over Ihe vesting period, which 1s the period over which all the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied

At the end of each reporting period, the group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-markel vesting conditions [t recegnises the impact of the reviston to the onginal estimate, If any, in the
statement of comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to equity

When the options are exercised, the company 15sues new shares The proceeds received net of any directly attnbutable
transaclions costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium

[(1)] Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent Hiability 15 & possible obligation that anses from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncerlain future events not wholly within the control of the Group It can
also be a present obligation ansing from past events that 1s not recognised because It 1s not probable that an outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably

A contingent habllity Is not recogmsed but is disclosed in the notes to the accounts  When a change in the probability of
an outllow occurs so that the outflow 1s probable, it will then be recognised as a provision

A contingent assel 1s a possible assel that anses from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of ena or more uncertain avents not wholly within the control of the Group

Conlingent assels are nol recognised but are disclosed In the noles lo the accounts when an inflow of economic benefils
1s probable When an inflow is virtually cerlain, an asset s recogrused
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
{v) Leased assets

Operaling lease Operaling lease payments are recogrised as an operaling expense (n profit or loss on a straight-ine
basis aver the lease term

Finance lease Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the nisks and benefils incidental to ownership
of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased propenty or, if lower, at
lhe prasent value of the mimmum lease payments Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease habilily so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the ltability Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in profit or loss

(w} Employee benefits
a  Defined contribution plan

Obligations for contrbutions to the Fiy National Provident Fund are recogmised as an expense in profit or loss as they are
due

b  Short-term benefits

Shont-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed in profit or loss as the
related service 1s provided

¢ Long-term employee benelits

Obhgations i respect of long-term employee benefils such as long service leave 18 the amount of fulure benefif that
employees have earned in relumn for thew service \n the current and prior periods, that benefit 1s discounled to determine
its present value

d Terminalion benefils

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Group 1s demonstrably committed, without realislic
probability of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to
provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy Termunation benefits for
veluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense If the company has made an offer encouraging volunlary
redundancy, it 1s probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be measured rehably
Benefits falhing due more than 12 months f the reporting date are discounted to their present value
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4 Turnover and Segmental Analysis

All turnover in the Group in the current and prior year is denved from the sales to the one customer, which is included in
the Gold mining segment

2011 Unattributed
Head Office Gold Other

Costs Mintng Activity Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Turnover - 47 964 - 47,964
Miring - {29,731) - {29,731)
Processing - (9,144) - (9,144)
Gold duty . {1,440) - (1,440)
Overheads - (4,403) - (4,403}
Cost of sales - (44.718) - {44,718)
Gross Profit - 3,246 - 3,246
Administrative expenses {1,880) (244) {(177) (2,301)
Foreign exchange gains - 1,582 - 1,502
Depreciation and amortisation (2,447) (3,595) {32} {6,074)
Underlying operating (loss) / proflt {4,327) 999 (209) (3,537)
Inventory obsolescence - 179 - 179
Rehabititation charge - - - -
Provision for doubtful debt - 242 - 242
Share based payments (128) (680) - (808)
Operating {loss) / profit (4.455) 740 (209) (3,924)
Interest recelvable and other income 63 28 9 98
Interest payable and simitar charges (45) {58) 3 (107)
Net {ioss} [ profit before taxation 4.437) 707 (203) {3,933)
Taxafton 1,618 - - 1,618
{Loss) / Profit for the period (2.819) 707 (203 (2,315)

Other Segment [tems

Additiens to intangible assets - 2,687 - 2,667
Additions to property, plant, and equipment - 6,521 1 6,532
Addihions to mine properties and development - 1,808 - 1,898
Current assets 5,122 17,555 43 22,720
Non currents assets 31,351 32,946 248 64,545
Current llabiliies (197) {8,250} )] {6,456)
Mon current habilies (8.116) (4,155} - (12,271)
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4 Turnover and Segmental Analysis {(continued)
2010 Unattributed
Head Office Gold Other
Costs Mining Activity Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Turnover - 40,354 - 40,354
Mining - {17,949} - (17,949)
Processing - (7.471) - {7.,471)
Gold duty - (1,218) - {1,216)
Overheads - (2,612) - (2,812)
Cost of sales - {29,248) - {20,248
Gross profit - 11,106 - 11,106
Administrative expenses {1,487) (1,589) {153) {3.229)
Foreign exchange gains - 2,182 - 2,182
Depreciation and amorilsation expense {2,994) (2,158) (35) (5,187)
Underlying operating {Joss) / profit {4,481) 9,541 (188) 4,872
Invantory chsolescence wiile bagk / (provision) - (381) - (381)
Rehabilitation charge - (N - (17
Proviston for doubtful debt write back - - - -
Share based payments expense {665) - - (665}
Operating {loss} / profit (5.146) 9,143 (188) 3,808
Interest recervable and other ncome 37 2 - 39
Interest payable and similar chargas (100 {54) )] {163}
Net {loss) / profit before taxation {5,209) 9,001 {187) 3,685
Taxalion 838 - - 838
{Loss) / profit for the year {4,371) 9,091 (197} 4,523
Other Segment ltams
Addilions to Intangible assets - 35 35
Additions to property, plant, and equipment - 5,248 2 9,250
Additions to mine properties and develepment - 3,852 - 3,852
Cureent assets 10,597 13,332 101 24,030
Non currents asséts 33,797 24,771 266 58,834
Current Habllities (318) {5.560} {14) (5.892)
Mon current liablitles (9.725) {4.732) - {14,457}
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5 Cost of sales

Group
Restated
2011 2010
£000 £'000
Mining (29,731) {17,949)
Metallurgy {9.144) (7AT1)
Gold duty {1,440) (1,218}
Bullion assay (141) (126)
Technical Servicas {421) (122)
Resourca gngineering (1,028) (656)
Supply and security (623) (332)
Human resources (1,190) 979
Safely lraining and environment {292) (58)
Mine ganeral administration {708} (339}
(44,718} {29,248}

Gold duty has been reclassified from operating expenses (o cost of sales to more appropnately reflect operations Prior year numbars
have been reclassified by £1,216,000 theraby reducing gross profit by the same amount

6 Operating {loss) / profit

Group
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Operating (loss) /profit Is stated after charging
— Auditors' rarmuneration
Audit services - Current year 97 48
Audit services - Prior year under provision 128 -
Non-audi services - Taxalion 10 25
Non-audit services - intanm review 10 -
Non-audit services - Other 5 2
Auditors’ remuneration payable to subsidiary auditors 24 17
— Share based paymenis expense granted by the Company 808 665
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,140 1,976
- Depreciation of muning proparties and development 432 217
— Amortisation of intangible assets 2,447 2,994
— Operating lease expenses motor vehicles 135 147
- Operaling lease expanses mining 34 23
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7 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directars) employed by the Group during the year was

2011 2010

Numbser Number

Productive tabour 1,013 740
COffice and management 137 77
1,160 817

Empioyment costs 2011 2010
£000 £'000

Wages and salaries 7.926 4,347
Social secunty 509 343
Share based payments expense 808 665
9,243 5,355

Directors’ remuneration 2011 2010
£000 £'000

1 C Omr-Ewing 60 60
D K Paxton 170 150
K C Morzaria 119 a7
D A Lenigas * 45 80
J | Stalker a7 B2
J F Kearnay 24 24
J A MacPherson 24 24
539 497

*D A Lenigas stepped down as a execulive director in Apnil 2011, and was appointed as a non-executive director

Directors remuneration in 2011 solely consisted of salaries, and as at 31 August 2011 (2010 nil) there were no directors
aceruing benefits under a monay pension scheme No options were granted to directors dunng the year, and no oplions
were exercised by the direclors

8 Interest receivable/payable and similar charges

interest recelvable and other income* 201 2010
£'000 £'000

Bank interast 94 39
Other 4 -
98 39

Interest payable and similar charges 2011 2010
£'000 £000

Inlerest and bank charges 18 42
Interest on convertible loan notes 45 121
Unwinding of discount for mine rehabditation 44 -
107 163
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9. Taxation

2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Current taxation - -
Deferred taxation - effect of change in tax rale (1,006) -
Deferred taxation - current year (612} {838)
{1,618) {838)
Factors affecting tax charge
(Loss) / profit befora tax {3,933 3,685
Tax at 27 17% {2010 28%) (1,068) 1,032
Effacts of
- Non deductible expenses 161 351
- Tax losses for which no deferred income tax was recognised 558 465
- Rate adjusiment (898) -
- Tax effect of income not subject to Income Tax (268) {2,666)
{1,618) {838)

The deferred taxation credit anses on the release of the deferred lax hability {note 31)

Durning the year, as a resull of the change in the UK corporation tax rate from 28% to 27% that was subslantively enacted
by the Finance Act 2011 on 5 July 2011, the relevant deferred tax balances have been re-measured at 25% The Finance
Act 2011 has reduced the main corporation tax rate lo 26% from 1 Apnl 2011 and to 25% from 1 Apnl 2012 The
Government have indicated that it will continue to reduce the main corporation lax rate by 1% per annum to 23% by 1 Apnl
2014, but these rates have not yet been snacted

The Group has estimated tax benafits in respect of tax losses of £4,585,000 (2010 £4,039,000), of which £3,313,000
(2010 £4,244,000) wali fully expire within 5 years, and other net deferred tax benefits in respect of temporary diferences
of £685,000 (2010 2,821,000) which have not been recognised as a deferred tax asset

10 Loss for the year

The Company’s loss for the year deail within the accounts of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc was £ 2,391,898 (2010 £

2,603,708) As provided by 5408 of the Companles Act 2006, no Statement of Comprehensive income 1s presented in
respect of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
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11 (Loss) / Earnings per share

a Basic

The calculation of consolidated (loss) / eamings per share 1s based on the following (loss) / earmungs and number of

shares
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
{Loss} / profit aftar tax {2,315) 4,623
2011 2010
Number Number
Basic welghted average ordinary shares in ssue during the period 84,015,905 71,539,282
2011 2010
Pence Pence
Basic {loss)fearnings per share {(276) 632

Basic (loss) / earmings per share 1S calculated by divitding the (loss) / profit for the year from continuing operations of the
Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue dunng the year On the 21st Oclober 2010, the
Company proposed to its shareholders a one for fifty basis consolidation of its share capital This resolution was approved
on the 8 November 2010, and the ordinary shares were consolidated on the basis of one new ordinary share of 5 pence
for every existing ordinary share of 01 pance Comparative numbers for baslc earnings per share have been adjusted to

reflect the share consolidation
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11. (l.oss)/Earnings per share {continued}
b Diluted

In the current year, all potenhal shares were anti-ditutive as the Group was in a loss making position As a result diluted
loss per share for the year ended 31 Augusi 2011 1s disclosed as the same value as basic loss per share The diluted
welghted average ordinary shares in 1ssue during the penod was 84,015,905

In the prior year, dilutad earnings per share was calculated by adjusting the weighled average number of ordinary shares
outstanding lo assume the conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares The Company has two categories of dilutive
polential ordinary shares convertible loan notes and share options / warrants The convertible debt is assumed to have
been converted Into ordinary shares, and the net profit 1s adjusted to eliminate the interest expense less the tax effect For
the share options, a calculation s performed to determine the number of shares thal could have been acquired at farr
value (determined as the average annual market share price of the company's shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscriplion nights aftached to outstanding share opltons The number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been 1ssued assuming the exercise of the share options

2011 2010

£'000 £7000

{Loss) / profit after tax (2,315) 4,523

Interest expense on convertible loan note {net of tax) - 53

(L.oss) / profit used to determine diluted earnings per shars (2,315) 4,576

20m 2010

Numhar Numbar

Baslc weighted average ordinary shares in issue dunng the period 84,015,905 71,539,282
Adjustments for

Assumed conversion of convertible loan note - 1,007,106

Share options / warrants - 755,674

Dlluted weighted average ordinary shares In Issue during the period 84,015,805 73,302,062

2041 2010

Pance Pence

Diluted {loss) / earnings per share (2 76) 624

All outstanding ophions and warrants were adjusted appropriately to refiect the share consolidation so that In general
terms, the ophtonis or warrants would be exercisable on the basis of one new ordinary share for each 50 existing ordinary
shares subject to the warrant or option and so hat the exercise price for each such shares would be 50 times the
subscnption price for the existing ordinary shares Comparative numbers for diuted earnings per share have been
adjusted to reflect the share consohidation
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12 Intangible assets

Mining Computer Exploraticn

Rights Software axpenditure Total
Group £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 September 2010 38,414 140 36 38,590
Addiians - B 2,667 2,667
Transferred from tangible assels - 97 27 124
Exchange difference - 8 39 45
As at 31 August 2041 38,414 243 2,768 41,426
Amortisation
As at 1 September 2010 4,866 - - 4,866
Curient charge 2,447 55 - 2,502
Exchange difference - 1 . 1
As at 31 August 2011 7,313 58 - 7,369
Carrying value ag at 31 August 2011 31,104 187 2,769 34,057

Mining Computer Exploration

Rights Software expenditure Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 September 2009 38,414 - - 38,414
Additions - - 35 35
Transferred fram tangible assets - 138 . 138
Exchange difference - 2 1 3
As at 31 August 2010 38,414 140 36 38,6490
Amortisation
As at 1 September 2009 1,872 - - 1,872
Current chargs 2,994 - - 2994
As at 31 August 2010 4,866 - - 4,866
Carrying value as at 31 August 2010 33,648 140 38 33,724

The Mining rights represent the mining nghts aguired on the acquisifion of the Vatukoula Gold Mine in April 2008 The
amorfisation of the Mining Rights 1s calculated on a unit of production basls, based on forecast production and the total
Mineral Reserves At the current production, reserves and gold price, the economic useful life is expected to be 8 years
This rale will vary from year to year and Is dependant on the mineral reserves which are reassessed every year
Amorusation 1s included in depreciation and amortisation in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

This year the directors carried out an impairment review As 0 previous years, this was based on an estimate of
discounted future cash flows from the development and operation of the Vatukoula Gold Mine The direclors have used
past expenence and an assessmenl of fulure conditions, logether with exlernal sources of information, to determine the
assumptions which were adopled in the preparation of a financial mode! lo estimate the cashflows

The recoverable amount of the mine 1s delermined by using a nel present value calculation based on the estimated
economically recoverable portion of the total Mineral Resource and the life of mine plan The hife of mine plan s currenily
15 years (2010 11 years) This Mineral Resource 1s used rather than the Mineral Reserve as the Mineral Reserve will not
reprasent the total recoverable amount from the mine This 15 because it excludes ore deposils thal are above the
economic cut off grade within the Inferred Mineral Resource category

66




Vatukouta Gold Mines Plc
Notes to the Financlal Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2011

12 Intanglble assets {continued)

The key assumptions therein are those regarding discount rates, and expecled changes to selling prices and direct costs
dunng the peniod Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates thal reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the nsks specific lo the mine and the rate used was 10%

The production 1 based on the directors’ forecast of the mine’s maximum outpul and based on the mine achieving its
operaling capacity The directors beliove this rate i1s justified based an the current progress of the mine A deferred tax
hability of £10,757,000 arose 1in 2008 in respect of the intangible asssets recogmsed on the acquisition in the prior pencds
The deferred tax hablity 1s in respect of future taxabile profits potentiaily generated from the exploration of the mining rights
{Mote 31)

The Exploration expenditure 1s an internally generated intangible assel, and represents costs associated with the
exploralion and evaluation of mineral deposits on our mining and special prospecting licenses and are capitalised under
IFRS 8 The direclors believe that there are no indicators of impairment

The Computer Software expenditure represents the costs associated with the purchase of specialised mining and
inventory software

13.  Tanglble assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Fixtures
and fittings
feasehold Workin  Plant and Motor Mine and
land progress machinery vehicles assets equipment Total
Group £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £2000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 September 2010 1,134 2,881 18,399 405 3.086 148 26,053
Addittons - 6,521 1 10 - - 6,532
Transferred on completion - (8,172) 8,172 - - - .
Disposals - - - {53) - 1) (54)
Revaluation - . - - (331) - {331)
Transfer to Mine Properties
and development - - (946) - - - {946)
Transferred to Intangible - {97) - - - - (97)
Exchange difference 3t 68 1,461 8 114 1 1,683
As at 31 August 2011 1,165 201 28,087 370 2,869 148 32,840
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 September 2010 - - 4,733 287 154 96 5,330
Charge for the year - - 2,976 8 153 3 3,140
Disposals - - - (48) - 1) (49)
Transfer to Mine Proparlies
and development ) ' 32) - - . (32)
Transferred to intangible - - 27 - - - 27
Exchange difference - - 879 4 8 - 891
As at 31 August 2011 - - 8,643 251 315 98 9,307
Net book value
At 3 August 201t 1,165 201 19,444 11% 2,654 50 23,633
At 31 August 2010 1,134 2,881 13,606 118 2,932 52 20,723

The Group has one ilem that has been acquired which is subject to a finance lease (Note 22) It was acquired for £26,035 and has a
net book value of £14,603
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13  Tangible assets {continued)

(a)  Property plant and equlpment (continued)

Freehold Fixtures
and fittings
leasehold Work in  Plant and Motor Mine and
land progress  machinary vehicles assets equipment Total
Group £000 £'000 £:000 £:000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 September 2008 1,074 1,176 12,990 388 - 145 15,773
Additions - 6,204 - - 3,042 2 9,248
Transferrad on completion - {4,449) 4,449 - - - -
Disposals - (17) (13) - - (30)
Transferrad to intangible - (138) - - - - (138)
Exchange difference 60 105 973 17 44 i 1,2Q0
As at 31 August 2010 1,134 2,881 18,399 405 3,086 148 28,053
Accumulated deprectation
As at 1 September 2009 - 104 2,300 259 - 9 2,756
Charge for the year - - 1,803 19 152 2 1,976
Disposals (13 (13) - - - (26)
Transferred on completion - (87) 87 - - R -
Exchange difference - (4} 616 9 2 1 624
As at 31 August 2010 - 4,783 287 154 96 6,330
Net book value
At 31 August 2010 1,134 2,881 13,606 118 2,932 52 20,723
At 31 Aug 2009 1,074 1,072 40,690 129 - 52 13,017
Freehold
land Total
Company £000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 September 2010 and as at 31 August 2011 250 250
Neot book value
At 31 August 20114 250 250
At 31 August 2010 250 250
Cost
As at 1 September 2009 and as at 31 August 2010 250 250
Net book value
At 31 August 2010 250 250
At 31 Aug 2009 250 250
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13  Tangible assets (continued)

{b)  MNine properties and development

2011 2010
£000 £000
Cost
Balance 1 Seplember 5614 1,604
Additions 1,698 3,852
Transfers from Property, Plant and Equipment 946 -
Forelgn exchange difference 237 i58
Balance as at 31 August 8,695 5,614
Depreciation
Balance 1 September 1,227 1.013
Current charge 432 217
Tranfers from Properly, Plant and Equipment 32 -
Foreign exchange difference 48 (3)
Balance as at 31 August 1,740 1,227
Carrying value
Balance as at 31 August 6,966 4,387

During the current year the company invested £1,925,000 (2010 £3,887,000) in underground capital development

14 Avallable for sale lnvestments

Group Company

2011 2010 201 2010

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 September 477 477 400 400
Whiten off (77 - - -
As at 31 August 400 477 400 400
Provigfon for diminution In value
As at 1 September arn (477) (400} (400)
Whriten off 77 - - -
As at 31 August {400) (477) (400) {400)
Net book value at 31 August - . - -

Avallable for sale investments constitute holdings n the following entities
Country of Principal

Name of business Incorporation actlvities % held
Lesotho Dlamonds Corporation Grbraltar Miming 05

In April 2007, the Company acquired 1,212,121 new ordinary shares in Lesotho Diamond Corporation for £400,000 The
company was subsequently renamed Global Diamonds Resources (*GDR") Operations ceased at the mine due to a lack
of funding on the 5™ of January 2010 Dunng the prior year GDR has gone mto liquidation and therefore the Directors of
the Company thought 1t was appropnate to continue to provide fully for this investment
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14 Availabla for sale investments (continued})

In the year ended 31 August 2003, River Diamonds Ltd, a wholly owned subsidary of Vatukoula Gold Mines Pl
purchased £77,000 of new ordinary shares in Cambnan Forestry Products In 2004 the Company provided fully for tivs
investment as it was undergoing restructunng  On 14 Apnl 2009 Cambrian Forestry Producls was dissolved

These investments were mifially measured at cost This 1s because the directors consider that its fair value cannot be
measured reliably as the mvestments are not quoted on an active market

15 Investment in subsidiary companles

Company

201 2010

£'000 £:000
Cost
As at 1 September 39,489 39,489
Additions in the year Share based payments to subsidiary companies 664 -
Additions in the year- Equily capilal contnbution 8,386 -
Balance as at 31 August 48,539 39,489
Impairment
Balance as at 31 August 1,810 1,810
Net book value
Balance as at 31 August 46,720 37,679
Dafalis of the subsldianes

Country of Principal %

Name of business Incorporation activities hetd
Viso Gero International Inc BVi Holding company 100
Vatukoula Gold Pty Ltd Australia Holding company 100
Vatukoula Australia Australia Holding company 100
Vatukoula Finance Pty Lid Australa Holding company 100
Koula Mining Company Fifi Dormant 100
Jubilea Mining Company Fip Domnant 100
Vatukoula Gold Mine Ltd Fiji Mining 100
River Diamonds UK Ltd England & Wales Holding Company 100
Panguma Diamonds Ltd Sierra Leone Dormant 100
S&o Carlos Mineragéo Limitada * Brazil Exploration 100

*  The nvestment in this entily 1s held by River Diamonds UK Lid, a 100% cwned subsidrary of the Company

investments in subsidiary companies are measured al cost, less accumulated provisions for impairments
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16 Inventories

Group

2011 2010

£000 £'000
Consumables stores 5,003 3,663
Allowances for inventory obsclescence {430} (609}
Total consumables stores 4,573 3,054
Insurance spares 249 253
Allowances for obselescene (249) {253)
Total insurance spares - -
Gold in circuit and gotd stock 3,461 2,976
As at 31 August 8,034 6,030

A reversal of a wnte-down of inventonies amounted to £178,811 (2010 Nif) Inventory previously been watten ofi has

been reassessed as useful for production

17 Trade and other recervables

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Trade recaivables 2,088 1,523 - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 16,735 14,877
Other receivables 4,650 4,122 741 571
6,738 5,645 17,476 15,248
Less Provision for doubtful debts (2.861) (3,011) (500) {500}
Prepayments 3917 2,517 57 -

7,794 5,151 17,033 14,748

Trade recevables are amounis due from the sales of gold The average credit period taken on sales of goods 1s two

weeks (2010 two weeks)

The prowiston for doubtful debts includes £2 5 million (2010 £2 5 milion) in relation to the prepayments agamnst the
claimed tax llabilihes of F$ 11 6 milhan by The Fyi Islands Revenue & Customs Authority The prepayment ceased in
December 2008 and none have been made since this date However, given the ime the court case has been outstanding
and that currently there 15 no date in the court dianies for this matter to be heard it was though! prudent that the Company
provide for any prepayments made in relation to this tax assessment The Fiji [slands Revenue & Customs Authonty has

recognised the prepayment of the claimed tax liabiily

17 Trade and other receivables {continued)
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The Group has significant conceniration of credit nisk wilh ts single customer in respect of bullion sales The Group has
credit sk management policies in place and exposure lo credit nsk 15 monitored on an ongoing basis Management
generally adopts conservative strategies and tight control in cradit policy

The following table prowides an analysis of trade and other receivables that were past due as al 31 August 2014, but not
provided for, followed by those past due and impared Subsequent to the year, all (rade recewables of over 93 days have
been paid The Group believe that all the balances are ulimately recoverable

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Not impaired
Due 0-31 days 2,743 1725 FLY 71
Past due 32-62 days 244 468 - -
Past due 63 — 92 days 568 - - -
Past dua more than 93 days 322 441 - .
3877 2,634 241 71
Impaired
Past due more than 93 days 2861 3,011 500 500
Provision for doubtful debis {2,861) {3,611} (500) (500)
3,877 2,634 41 ral

The movement n provision for doublful debls has been credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, after
ehiminating a forergn exchange gamn ansing on conschidation to the amount of £82,000

18. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
201 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Cash at bank and In hand 6,892 12,849 4,774 10,452
6,592 12,849 4,774 10,452

At 31 August 2011 management bslieves that lhe carrying amount of cash equivalents approximales to fair value because
of the short matunty of these financial instruments

19.  Share capital

(8)  Share capital

Group and Company
2011 2010
£ £
Aliotted, Issusd and fully pald
87,558,338 ordinary shares of 5p each
{31 Aug 2010 80,622,821 ordinary shares of 5p each) 4377917 4,031,441

On the 21st October 2010, the Company proposed to its shareholders a one for fifty basis consolidation of its share
capttal This resolution was approved on the 8 November 2010, and the ordinary shares were consolidated on the basis of
one new ordinary share of 5 pence for every existing ordinary share of 0 1 pence Comparalive numbers for share capital
and basic eamings per share have been adjusted to reflect the share consolidation
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18 Share capifal (continued)

(b)  Sharessues dunng the year

Value of
lssue Parvelue Share shares
value per per premium Share Share issued for
Share Share  per Share Shares Capital premium cash
Date £ £ £ £ £ £
Shares issued
for cash
Exarcise of warrants* 0410/2010 100 005 095 20,000 1,000 19,000 20,000
Exercise of warrants* 07/10/2010 1460 005 095 60,000 3,000 57,000 60,000
Exercise of warrants® 20/10/2010 060 005 055 95,518 4,776 62,635 57,311
Exercise of warrants® 28110/2010 050 005 045 455,000 22,750 204,750 227,500
Exercise of warrants 18111/2010 100 005 095 10,000 500 8,600 10,000
Exercise of wananis 181172010 100 005 086 30,000 1,500 28,500 30,000
Exercise of warrants 181172010 100 005 085 300,000 15,000 285,000 300,000
Exercise of warrants 130112014 100 005 095 70,000 3,500 66,500 70,000
Exercise of warrants 13/0172011 100 005 085 250,000 12,500 237,500 250,000
Exarcise of warrants 1310172011 100 005 095 10,000 500 9,500 10,000
Exercise of warrants 134012011 050 005 045 60,000 3,000 27,000 30,000
Exercise of warrants 03/03/2011 060 005 055 62,500 3125 34,375 37.500
Exercise of warrants 03/03r2011 100 005 095 140,000 7.000 133,000 140,000
Exercise of warranis 03/03/2011 100 005 095 100,000 5,000 95,000 100,000
Exercise of warrants 03/03/2011 100 005 095 300,000 15,000 285,000 300,000
Exercise of warranis 08/04/2011 0860 005 055 60,000 3,000 33,000 36,000
Issue for cash 18/06/2011 125 005 120 4,800,000 240,000 5,760,000 6,000,000
Exercise of warrants 14/07/2011 060 005 055 62,500 3,125 34 375 37,500
6,885,518 344,276 7,371,535 1,718,811
Issue  Par vaiue Share Value of
value per per premium Share Share loan note
Share Share  per Share Shares Capital premium converted
Date £ £ £ £ £ £
Shares issued in
relation to the
conversion of loan
notaes
Conversion of loan notes  28/10/2010 050 005 045 10,0600 500 4,500 5,000
Conversion of loan notes ~ 18/11/2010 050 005 045 40,000 2,000 18,000 20,000
50,000 2,500 22,500 25,000
8,935,518 346,776 7,394,035 7,740,811

The ordinary shares have a par value of 5 pence per share (2010 5 pence) and are fully paid These shares carry no nght
lo fixed income or have any preferences or restictions attached to them
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19  Share capital {continued)
(b)  Share issues dunng the year (continued}

. The issue of these shares tock place pnor to the share consolidation on the 21* of October 2010 (note 19{(a)) The
comparative values prior lo share consolidahon would have been as follows

Value of
issue Par value Share shares
valup per per premium Share Share issued for
Share Share  per Share Shares Capital premium cash
Date £ £ £ £ £ £

Shares issued

for cash

Exarcise of warranis 04/10/2010 020 0 001 0019 1,000,000 1,000 19,000 20,000
Exercise of warrants 071012010 002 a0 0019 3,000,000 3,000 57,000 60,000
Exarcise of warranis 20/10/2010 001 0001 0011 4,775,888 4,778 52,535 57,311
Exercise of warrants 28102010 001 0001 0009 22,750,000 22,750 204,750 227,500

74




72

9.8'06€'8 858°I¥8 - - 000°06%'s - - 000°00Y - BLS'08Z 000'8LE") [ 0402 }SnNENY |¢ j soueeg
(oooezt)y - - (opo 828) - - - - - - - €l T3k 3 BUunp pondxg
(ze2 svE) - - - - - - - - (zZel'ere) - 90 Jeaf ay) buunp pasiasaxy
BOL'LE0 £ 258'1v8 - - Q00'004°L - - 000'00Y - 052'629 000'09 S Jeak ayj Buunp pajueig
ooo'veELS - - 000'9Z% ooo oBg'y - - - - - 00C8IE’L 60 6002 Jequaldag | 12 sdueleq
=o)L a0 £F 6T L3 ST LI 00 13 26703 5603 06 0F g8 03 09 03 0503 aoud asiuexg
sjueLeM suogdo suondo sucndo suondo suondo suoydo SUBLEM SqUBLEM suondo aleys
JO JoqQUINN joJaquunpy  j0 lagqumn  pue JolBquuNN  JOIBQUWINN JOlaquaN  JOIdquinnN  J0J3QWNnN  josequiny  tad sopud
sjuRLEM asIIaXa
J0 JaquinN abesaay
THEL - Thi'ver - 000°00Z'¢  QQ0'00L 000'59E 000°00F 000'SEZ - 000°es8 oL L10Z 1SnBnY 1£ 18 soupieg
(858 L+8) (gsg \v8) - - - - - - - - - ot 122X oy} buonp pandxg
(grs'ss0'2y - - - {ooo'oez'y) - - - - (g1s'ez)  {oco'SkS) 8O pouad 3y Buunp pasisiexg
Zi'ves't - Zll ¥8t - - 000'002 000'59¢ - 000'5£Z - - 1L pouad ay) Buunp pajuess
9IE'06E 8 858°L¥e - - 000 06¥ & - - 000'00Y - g+5'082 000'8.E°} [y 0L0Z Jequaides | e aoueleg
130l 00 £3 6¢ L3 ST L3 0043 46 03 56 03 06 03 88 03 09 03 0s 03 aoud asidlexy
SIUBLIEM suondo suogdo suondo suondo suondo suondo suondo suondo suondo aJeys
JOI3QUINN  JOJAQWINN  JOJaqUnN  pue JOIBQWINN  JOJSqUINN  (0JAqWNN  JOJAGIUNYN  JoJaqunN  jodaquny  43d aoud
SJUBLIBM asiaaxa
JO 1oquuny abeiaay

9ld SBuly PO BINOYNIEA Ul saseys Aeuipio dg aseyound o) Suondo pUB SJUBLEM SU} UD PRLNIIO SIUBLISAOW Buimopoy ay) | LOZ 1SNBny Le papua Jeak au Buung

suondo pue sjuBLBAA @

(panuguos) [eprdes aseys 6l

110z ¥snbny ¢ popue Jeak ayy 204
SIUIWNEIS [BIFUBULY SL OF SARON
Jld Saully PloD eInoynjeA




Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc
Notes to the Financial Stataments
For the year ended 31 August 2011

19.  Share capital (continued)

{¢)  Warrants and options (continued)
The following main conditions apply 1o all options and warrants currently on issue and granted durnng the year

Management ophons vest immediately on grant, however should the graniee resign or ba dismissed prior to the first
anniversary of his or her employment the options will cease Directors’ options vest immedtately and there are no
performance condltions associated wilh the options

Warranls were granted fo professional adwsors in Hieu of sernices All the warrants vested immediately on grant

The optians granted dunng the year to diractars, staff and adwisors were as follows

¢ On 21 Apnl 2011 ~ 235,000 oplions fo the mine management in Fiji Each opbon cames the night to subscnbe for 1
ordinary share of £0 05 each in the capital of the Company at a price of £0 88, exercisable up lo five years after the
commencement of employment with the Company, and

« On 28 July 2011 — 365,000 oplions to company employees Each oplion carries the nght to subscribe for 1 ordinary
share of £0 05 each in the capital of the Company at a pnice of £0 95, exercisable up to five years after the
commencement of employment with the Company, and

¢ On 23 March 2011 ~ 484,112 options to the mine management in Fiy Each oplion carnes the right to subscribe for 1
ordinary share of £0 05 each In the capital of the Company at a price of £1 39, exerclsable up to five years after the
commencement of employment with the Company, and

+ On 20 June 2011 - 600,000 options to the mine management in Fii Each option cames the nght to subscribe for 1
ordinary share of £0 05 each In the capital of the Company at a price of £0 87, exercisable up to five years after the
commancement of employment with the Company, and

e On 28 July 2011 - 100,000 ophions to company employees Each oplion carnies the nght to subscnbe for 1 ordinary
share of £0 05 each in the capital of the Company at a price of £0 97, exercisable vp to five years after the
commencement of employment with the Company

The total share-based payment expense in the year for the Group was £807,592 (2010 £664,554 ), and 6,347,112 (2010
8,389,514) options are exercisable at the year end No options were forfelted dunng the year (2010 NIL)

The following table lists the inputs used for the option 1ssues which occurred duning the year

Grant date 2110452011 28/07/2011  23/03/2011 29062011 28/07/2011
Dividend yleld 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatiity 53% 53% 68% 65% 62%
Risk-free interest rate 2 75% 275% 475% 475% 4 75%
Expected life of 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years
ophions

Exercise prica £0 88 £095 £139 £0 97 £097
Price at grant date £148 £0 98 £140 £097 £097

The model used {o armve at the fair value of all the oplions granied during the year was the Black Scholes option pricing
model The weighted average fair value of the options granted during the current year was determined as £0 57 per
ophion

The weighled average remaining confractual hfe of the 7 2 million opfions oulstanding al the balance sheet date 15 3 4
years (2010 4 years) The weighted average share price during the year was £1 59 (2010 £1 10) per share

The expected volatiity of the options reflects the assumption that historical volatiity 1s indicative of future trends, which
may not necessarily be the actual outcome The expected life of the options 1s based on historicat data avallable at the
time of the option 1ssue and 15 not necessanly indicative of future trends, which may not necessanly be the actual
outcome

The share option scheme and the warrants on issue Is an equity settled plan and fair value 1s measured at the grant date
of the optien
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20 Trade and other payables

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade payables 4,066 4,103 80 142
Accruals and other payables 163 205 117 176
4,229 4,308 197 318
21 Provisions
Group
Restated
2011 2010
£'000 £°000
Current
Provislon for annual leave 224 164
Provislon for workers compensation 63 65
Other employee related provisions 377 299
664 528
Non current
Provision for mine rehebilitation 4,092 4,220
Provision for Long Senvice Leave 48 -
4,141 4,220
4,806 4,748
Employes Long
related Mine Service
provislons  rehabilitation Leave Total
Greup £000 £:000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 2010 (Restated) 628 4,220 - 4,748
Additional provisions made dunng the yeas 190 - 49 239
Raversed duting the year (4) (331) - (335)
Unwinding of discount - 44 - 44
Exchange difference (50) 159 - 109
Balance at 31 August 2011 664 4,092 49 4,805

Employee related provisions include a provision for unpald annual leave based on Flpan labour legislation, and a provision
for legally required workers compensation relating to work injunes Based on current eslimates, lhese are expected to
realise in approximately 10 years

The prowision for mine rehabilitation represents the current mine closure plan The present value of the estimated cost 1s
capitalised as property, plant and equipment Over fime the discounted labiity will be increased for the change i the
present value based on the discount rales that reflect the current market assessments and the risks specific to the hability

The provision for Mine Rehabilitation is expected to be expensed over the life of mine which 1s currently 14 years (2010

12 years} The hfe of mine 1s dependent on the economic viabilily of extracling the conlamed Mineral Rescurces and may
vary on a year by year basis dependant on the mining / processing costs and the price of Gold In addition the quantum of
the proviston may vary on a year by year basis dependant on the costs assoctated with executing the Mine Rehabibtation
Plan

Long service leave 1s a contractual obligation for additional leave days earned by employees with 10 years or more
service Based on current eshimates, these are expected to realise in approximately 10 years
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22, Borrowings

Group
2011 2010
£000 £'000
Current
ANZ Banking Group . 34
Finance lease habilty {note 29) 5 11
5 45
Non Current
Finance lease liabllty (note 29) . 5

ANZ Banking Group Loan
The loan was taken to faciitale payment of an insurance premium

The loan was repaid in full in September 2010

Finance lease liability
The finance lease liabilily 1s secured by master lease agreement and a charge over leased assets

The finance lease 1s repayable by monthly instalments of £ 987 and interest 1s being charged at the rate of 14% per
annum and s fully repayable in January 2012

23 Vatukoula Social Asslstance Trust Fund

Group
Restated
2011 2010
£000 £'000
Current

Vatukoula Soclal Asslstance Trust Fund 1,558 1,011
1,558 1,011

Non Currant
Vatukoula Social Assistance Trust Fund 13 506
13 506

The Vatukoula Socral Assistance Trust Fund (“VSATF™) was established for the purpose of social assislance for the
employees made redundant by the previous mine operator and lhe local mining community in accordance with the Trust
Deed dated 18 December 2009

The VSATF has been reclassified from a prowision to a habiity There remains very litlle uncerlanty regarding the timing
and the amounts payable, therefore a classification as a habilty is regarded as more appropnate Prior year numbers
have been represented to reflect the reclassificabion in the prior year The reclassification of the total hability of £1,517,000
had no [mpact on the Group's net asset position at 31 August 2009 or 31 August 2010 As such, a Statement of Financral
Position as at 31 August 2009 has not been presented

The VSATF 1s part of the Vatukoula Trust Deed, a binding contract between the Company's wholly owned subsidiary and

the Fipan Mimistry of Lands and Mineral Resources A tolal of F$6 million 1s payable of which the Group paid F$1 5 miltion
on 10 March 2010 The remairung F$4 § milllon has been allocated to Current and Non Current Liabilites as follows
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23 Vatukoula Soclal Assistance Trust Fund {contlnued)

F$'000 £'000
Current

Instalments according to Trust Dead due within 1 year 1,125 394
Redundancy paymen! due within 1 year 3,325 1,164
4,450 1,668

Non Current
Instalments according to Trust Deed due more than 1 year 50 18
60 18
4,500 1,676

The non current portion of the habiily has been discounted to the net present value of the future cash ftows at £13,000

24 Convertible loans

(1} On 26 June 2009, the Group 1ssued a fully redeemable convertible loan note for £485,000 repayable in cash 5
years after the date of grant The loan note carnes a coupon rate of 11% per annum The loan note will be
converlible at £0 50 equaling to 870,000 shares in Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc During the year £25,000 (2010
£130,000) of these convertble loan notes were converted to 50,000 (2010 260,000) new ordinary shares in the
Company, £2,500 (2010 £13,000) was credited to ordinary share capital and £22,500 (2010 £117,000) was
credited to share premium £8,000 has been debited from the equily component upon conversion

The net proceeds from the 1ssue of the convertible loans have been split between the liability element and an equity

component as follows

Group and Company

2011 2010

£000 E'000

Nominal value 386 385
Equity component (45) (53)
4 332

(ii)  The movement in the llabiity component of the convertible loan nole s as foflows

Group and Company

2011 2010

£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 332 502
Conversion of loan noles (25) (230}
Released wio equlty on conversion 2 .
Unwind discounted present value of hahility B 22
Pnncipal interest 37 46
Coupon interest - 53
Interast paid (13) (61}
Balance at 31 Augus! N 33z
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25. Financial instruments and nsk management objectives and policies

The accounting pohicies for financial instruments have been appled lo the Iine items below

Group
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Leans and receivables

Trade and other recevables 3,877 2634
Cash and cash equivalents 6,892 12,849
10,769 15,483
£'¢00 £000

Fiancial {iabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 4,066 4103
Borrowings 5 45
Converhible loan notes 341 332
QOther liabilities - 5
4,412 4,485

Company
2011 2010
£°000 £'000
Loans and recelvables

Trade and other recelvables 298 71
Cash and cash equivalents 4,774 10,452
5,072 10,523
£000 £000

Fiancial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 80 142
Convertible loan notes 341 332
421 474

Loans and receivables are measured using the amortised cost method Avallable for sate financral instruments are irmtially
recogrised al fair value and subsequently remeasured lo fair value at each year end, with any change in valus recognised
directly in equity, unless the instruments are unable to be rehably farr valued, in which case they are stated at cost

The Group and Company's actvities expose it to a vaniety of financial nsks, currency nsk, credit nsk, iquidity risk and cash
flow interest rate nsk  The policies for managing these nsks are regufarly reviewed and agreed by the Board it 1s, and
has been throughout the period under review, the Group and Company's policy that no trading in financal instruments
should be undertaken

)] Currency rate nisk

Loans between companies which are members of the Vatukoula Gold Mines Plc group are made in the operaling
currency of lhe lending company [n all other respects, the policy for all group companies ss that they only trade in their
principal cperating currency, excepl in exceplional circumstances from time to time

The Group's revenue denves from the sale of gold buthon by its Fizan operating subsidiary  Proceeds of gold bullion sales

are receivad 1n US Dollars  As the group reports in Sterling, reported revenue 15 affected by the combination of changes in
the US Dollar/Firan Dollar and Sterling/Fipan Dollar rates
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25.  Financial instruments and risk management objectives and policies {continued)
0l Currency rate nsk {continued)

The Group's expenses in Fy end Brazil are incurred in Fij Dollars and Reals respectively  Any weakening in the Fian
Dollar/Reals would resull in a reduchion i expenses in Sterling terms, which would be 1o the Group's advantage There 1s
an equivalent downside risk to the group of strengthening i the Fijian Dollar/Reals which would increase Brazian
operating expenses in Stering terms  The following table dlustrates the allocation of financial nstruments across
currencies

2014 2010
£ Brazillan Australian us Fljt Brazilian Australian FiJl
Sterling Real Dollar Dollar Doltar £ Sterling Real Dollar Dollar
Class £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £7000 £000 £'000 £:°000
Financial
assets
Trade
receivables 2908 36 - 2,052 - 84 6 - 2,592
Cash and cash
equivalents 4,805 1 19 558 1,508 10,484 58 M 2,266
Financial
lHabilities
Trade payables 56 6 - 15 3,964 225 14 - 4,069
Borrowings - - - - 5 - - - 50
Convertibla loan
notes 341 - - - - 332 - -

The following table illustrates the Group's sensitivity to the fluctualion of the major currencies in which It transacts A 15%
increase has been apphed to each currency In the table below, representing management's assessment of a reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates

Group

2011 2010

£'000 £'000
Financtal assets
Impact on profit after tax on 15% increase In Flyjan Dollar fx rate against Sterling 226 728
Impac! on profit after tax on 15% decrease in Fiyran Dallar fx rate against Sterling (226) {728)
Impact on profit after tax on 15% increass In Reals fx rate against Sterling 6 10
Impact on profit after tax on 15% decrease in Reals fx rate agalnst Sterling 8) (10}
Financial liabilities
Impact on profit after tax on 15% increase in Fipan Dollar fx rate against Sterling (595) (618)
impact on profit after tax on 15% decrease [n Fijlan Dollar fx rale against Sterling 505 618
Impact on profit after tax on 15% increase In Reals fx rate aganst Sterling {1) {2)
Impact on profit after tax on 15% decrease in Reals fx rate against Sterllng 1 2

The board has assessed its exposure and if does not cutrenlly consider the nsk of exposure lo these currencies to be
matenal

For currency rale risk, the Company's exposure 1s considered to not be sigmificant because as 1t does not hold any
financial nstruments denominaled in foreign currencies and therefore quantitative information has not been provided

() Interest rate nisk

interest rale exposure anses mainly from cash holdings Contractual agreements entered into at Noating rales expose the
antity to cash flow nsk whilst the fixed rate borrowings expose the entity to farr value risk
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25. Financial instruments and risk management objectives and policles (continued)

The table below shows the Group’s financial assets and habiliies sphit by those bearing fixed and fleating rates and those
that are non-interest bearing

2011 2010
Non- Non-
interest interest
Fixed Floating Fixed
Class/categories Fioating rate rate bearing rato rate bearlng
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Financial assets

Trade recevables - - 2,088 - - 2,635
Other recelvables - - 5,706 - - 2,516
Cash and cash equivalents 6,892 - - 12,848 . -

Flnancial liabilities
Trade payables - - 4,066 - - 4,744
Bank overdraft - - - - - -
Accruals - - 163 - - 176
Borrowings - - - - 34 -
Finance [ease liability - 5 - - 16 -
Convertible loan notes - 341 - - 332 -

The fair value of all financtal tnstruments is approximalely equal to book value due to thelr short tarm nature and the fact
that they bear interest at fioating rates based on the locat bank rate

If Interest rates had been 1% hgherflower and all other vanables held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31
August 2011 would increase/decrease by £ 983,853 (2010 loss would increase/decrease by £ 69,675 )

For interest rale nisk, the Company's exposure 1s considered lo not be significant as it only holds cash and cash
equivalents at a floating rate and therefore quantitalive information has not been provided

(uy  Credit nsk

Credit nsk anises from trade recewvables and cash and cash equivalents Credit expasure I1s measured on a Group and
Company basis The Group and Company's maximum exposure to credit nsk relating to its financiat assets 1s given n
Note 17

(v)  Gold price nsk

The Group’s palicy 1s to sell gold at spot  The Group 1s exposed te gold price risk through go'd pnce fluctuations

An increasefdecrease of 256% n the spot price of gold at 31 August 2011, with all other variables held censtant, would
have the following impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income and equity at 31 August 2011

Statement of
Comprehenslve Income
and equity Impact

Increase/{decrease)

£'000

25% increase In the gold spot price 11,861
25% decrease in the gold spot pnce (11,891)

The Company has no exposure to gold pnce nsk

()  Ligwdity nsk

Responsibibily for hqundity nsk management rests with the board of directors, which has established appropnate hiquicity
nsk frameworks for the management of the Group’s and Company’s short, medium and long term funding and hquidity

management requirements The Group and Company manages liquidity risk by mantaning adequate reserves and by
conlinuously monitering forecast and actual cash flows and by matching maturity profiles of financial assets and Labilitres
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25 Financial Instruments and risk management objectives and policles {continued)

v} Liquidity nsk (continued)

The following table detais the Group's matunty profiles of its financial assets and habilities The table has been drawn up
based op the undiscounted cash flows of financial habililies based on the earhiest date on which the Group can be required
to pay The table includes both interest and principle cash flows

2011 2010
Less than More than Less than More than
one year oneg ygar ang year one year
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financlal Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,892 - 12,849 -
Trade and other recelvables 7,794 - 5,151 -
14,888 - 18,000 -

Financial Llabllitles
Borrowlngs 5 - 45 5
Trade and other payables 4,229 - 4,308 -
Convertibie loan notes - N - 332
4,234 341 4,353 337

For liquidity nsk , the Company's exposure is ¢onsidered to nol be significant as its onfy non-current financiat hability ts the
convertible loan nole and the matunty profile information ts provided within the Group's analysis above

(v) Captal nsk

The Group's capital management objectives (defined as net debt plus eguity) are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern n ordar to provide returns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders, while
maintaining a strong credit rating and headroom whilst optimising return to sharshotders through an appropnate balance of
debt and equity funding The Group manages s capital siructure and makes adjustments to It, in Iight of changes lo
economic conditions and the strategic objectives of the company Given the nature of early stage mining operations, the
Group has heen predominantly funded by equity However once the miming operations are at a sufficiently advanced stage
the Group may fund further expansion via debl The Group includes within net debt borrowings, convertible loans, trade
and other payabies, less cash and shon term deposits

2011 2010

£000 £001
Borrowings 5 50
Gonvertible loan 341 332
Trade and other payables 4,229 4,308
Less Cash and cash equivalents (6.892) {12,849)
Net {surplus)/debt (2,317) (6.159)
Equity 68,538 62,515
Net (surpius)/debt plus Equity 66,221 54,356

To maintain of adjust the capital structure, the Group may 1ssus new shares of return capital shareholders No changes
were made in the objectives, palices or processes durning the year ending 31 August 2010 and 31 August 2011 Dunng the
year the Group funded the expansion of the operations at the mine predominantly via the i1ssue of equity The board
thoughl this was the most appropnate means of funding given the stage of development of the Group, and the nsks
associated with the development of the Vatukoula Gold Mine

26 Ultimate controlling party

There was no utimate controliing party dunng the year
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27.  Related party transactions

Transachions between the Company and ils subsidianies, which are retated parties, have been eliminated on consolidation
Transactions and balances between related parties are set out below

In order to fund the expanslon of the operalions at the Vatukoula Gold Mine, dunng the current year lhe Company has
loaned an additional £10,722,033(2010 £5,863,071) to the wholly owned Fijan subsidiary Vatukoula Gold Mines Ltd The
total loan has been discounted to the net present value of the future cash flows by £7,920,898 (2010 £ Nil), resulting i a
total balance as at 31 August 2011 of £15,807,130(2010 £13,005,995) The loan charges interest at 0 5% with effect
from 1 Seplember 2011 (2010 Nil) and is repayable in full on 31 August 2016

During the current year, the company has loaned an additional amount to Viso Gero International Inc, a wholly owned
subsidiary £30,522 (2010 £ Nil) The loan has been discounted to the net present value of the future cash flows by
£484,857, (2010 £ Nil), resulting i a tota!l balance as at 31 August 2011 of £927,679 (2010 £1,362,014) The loan
charges Interest at 0 5% with effect from 1 Seplember 2011 (2010 Ni) and i1s repayable in full on 31 August 2016

During the current year, the company has loaned an additional amount toRiver tiamends (UK) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary £128,063 (2010 £308,784) The total balance as at 31 August 2011 is £Nil {2010 £308,784) The company
has writien off £436,847 durmg the year ended 31 August 2011 (2010 £115,951) The loan 15 Interest free and does not
have any fixed repayment period

During the year, the Company paid consullancy fees in respect of director's fees of £96,500 in (2010 £82,083) to
Promaco Ltd, a company related to J | Stalker, director of Vatukoula Gold Mines Plg  Af the year end £5,500 was payable
to Promaco Ltd (2010 £ Nil)

During the year, the Company paid consultancy fees In respect of direclor's fees of ENIl (2010 £30,307) to Kimmel
Consulting Ltd, a company related to K Morzana, director of Valukoula Geld Mines Plc There were no amounts payable to
Kimmel Consulling Lid at the year end

The company deems key management personnel to be both the executive and non-executive directors Remuneration
paid to the executive directors 1s disclosed In note 7

28 Commitments

(a)  Details of mining leases and speciaf site nghts held by the Group are as follows

0] On 22 March 2004, the Vatukoula Gold Mines Ltd entered into Special Mining Lease ("SML") agreements with the
Government of Fiji to lease a prece of land in the Province of Ba for the purpose of mining mineralts The lerms of
the lease agreement is for 20 years ending on 21 March 2025 Vatukoula Gold Mine Ltd has thres agreements and
the detalls are as follows

Mining lease title Lease number

Valukoula Gold Mines Ltd (formerly known as Weslech Gold Ltd) under
freehotd title 54

Majority of the lease 15 owned by Nosomo Landowners The remainder of
SML 1s crown Freehold 55

Vatukouta Gold Mines Ltd (formerly known as Westech Gold Ltd) under
freehold ttle 56

Under the current agreement, rent i1s payable for Lease No 54 and 56 at the rate of F$79,321 (2010 F$49,227) per

annum, which Is the equivalent of £27,772 (2010 £16,584) Rent payable for Lease No 55 1s F$19,132 (2010 F$19,132)
per annurn, which Is the equivalent of £6,698 (2010 £6,449)

() Total commitments for future SML and SSR lease rentals, which have not been provided for in the financial
statements, are as follows
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28. Commitments {continued)

Group
2011 2010
£'000 £000
No later than ¥ year 20 19
Later than 1 year an no later than 5 years 78 76
Later than 5 years 177 185
276 284

(b} Capital commitments

Capital commiiments as at 31 August 2011 amounted to £ 912,000 (2010 £1,187,500} These commitments are mn
relation to projected expenditure on mine properties and development

28, Leases
(a)  Operating leases
Details of operating leases held by the Group are as follows

a The Group has vanous operating leasas with ANZ for melor vehicles The operating lease 1s repayable by monthly
instalments of F$ 20,245 (2010 F$ 34,207 ), which is the equivalent of £7,088 (2010 £11,531)

h Total commutments for fulure motor vehicle lease rentals, which have not been provided for in the financial
statements, are as follows

Group
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Naot later than one year 28 138
Later than one year and not later than five years - 13
Later than five years - -
29 151

c The operaling lease Is secured over the masler operating lease agreement over motor vehicles

{b)  Finance leases
Detalls of finance leases held by the Group are as follows

0] The finance lease s repayable by monihly instalments of £ 1,082 and interest 1s charged at the rate of 14% per
annum

(u) Total future minimum finance tease payments are payable as follows

Group
2011 2010
£'000 £:000
Not later than one year 5 11
Later than one year and not later than five years -
5 16

{m)  The finance loase hability is secured by master lease agreement and a charge over leased assels
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30. Contingent habilittes

a The following contingent habiities are in relation to the Fijian subsidary
Group

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

Immigration bond - 3
Mining bond 4 -
Bankers undertaking 207 199
211 202

Both the minng bond and the bankers undertaking are contingent liabilittes to cover remediation or rehabiltalion
costs associated with any environmental breaches of the Special Site Rights There have been no breaches to
date, and depending on future events, it remains uncertawn if these liabilities will realise or suffice

b The Fi Islands Revenue & Customs Authonly (‘FIRCA®) has issued taxation assessments against the Group of
F$11 5milhon The Group does nol believe any amounts are payable and 1s vigorously defending the clam No
amounts have been provided In the accounts in respect of this claim  As at year end, advance tax payment of
F$7 9m has been made In relation to this The government has recognised the prepayment of the claimed tax
liabtlity, however given the pernod of time these debts have been oufstanding, the Company has taken a prudent
view and provided for the debls (Note 17) The expected timing and amounts of cash outflows remain uncertain

c The Group ts a plaintiff in several iigations with respect to potential claims of creditors, workers compensalion and
industnat action The directors have assessed the likelihood of these claims becoming payable and consider that
this 1s not likely Therefore there are no provision or contingent habilities disclosed for these

31 Deferred taxation

Movements i deferred taxation durng the year are as follows

Group
2011 2010
£'000 £000
Balance 1 Seplember 9,394 10,232
Impact of change In lax rate (1,006) -
Utihsation charged to the Statement of Comprehensive income (612) (838)
7,776 9,304

The deferred tax lability was in respect of the intangible assets recognised in the acquisilion in a prior peniod (Note 12)
32 Post balance sheet events

There were no significant post balance sheet events subsequent to the year end
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